

Statement of Additional Information

Roundhill ABNB WeeklyPay TM ETF (ABNW)	Roundhill LMT WeeklyPay™ ETF (LMTW)
Roundhill ARM WeeklyPay TM ETF (ARMW)	Roundhill MSTR WeeklyPay™ ETF (MSTW)
Roundhill ASML WeeklyPay TM ETF (ASMW)	Roundhill NFLX WeeklyPay™ ETF (NFLW)
Roundhill AVGO WeeklyPay TM ETF (AVGW)	Roundhill RDDT WeeklyPay™ ETF (RDDW)
Roundhill BABA WeeklyPay TM ETF (BABW)	Roundhill SHOP WeeklyPay™ ETF (SHOW)
Roundhill BRKB WeeklyPay TM ETF (BRKW)	Roundhill SPOT WeeklyPay™ ETF (SPOW)
Roundhill COST WeeklyPay TM ETF (COSW)	Roundhill TSM WeeklyPay TM ETF (TSMW)
Roundhill CRWD WeeklyPay TM ETF (CRWW)	Roundhill UBER WeeklyPay™ ETF (UBEW)
Roundhill DKNG WeeklyPay TM ETF (DKNW)	Roundhill XOM WeeklyPay ETF (XOMW)
Roundhill HOOD WeeklyPay™ ETF (HOOW)	

MAY 16, 2025

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus. It should be read in conjunction with the prospectus dated May 16, 2025, as it may be revised from time to time (the "Prospectus"), for each of the funds set forth above (each a "Fund," and together, the "Funds"), each a series of the Roundhill ETF Trust (the "Trust"). Capitalized terms used herein that are not defined have the same meanings as in the Prospectus, unless otherwise noted. A copy of the Prospectus may be obtained without charge by writing to the Funds' distributor, Foreside Fund Services, LLC, at Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, ME 04101, or by calling toll free at (855) 561-5728. You may also obtain a Prospectus by visiting each Fund's website at www.roundhillinvestments.com/etf.

References to the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"), or other applicable law, will include any rules promulgated thereunder and any guidance, interpretations or modifications by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), SEC staff or other authority with appropriate jurisdiction, including court interpretations, and exemptive, no action or other relief or permission from the SEC, SEC staff or other authority.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUST AND THE FUNDS
EXCHANGE LISTING AND TRADING
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
Investment Strategies
Investment Risks
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES
INVESTMENT ADVISER AND OTHER SERVICE PROVIDERS
Brokerage Allocations
Additional Information
PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
CREATION AND REDEMPTION OF CREATION UNITS
FEDERAL TAX MATTERS
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE
DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS 50
MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION
Performance Information

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUST AND THE FUNDS

The Trust was organized as a Delaware statutory trust on May 2, 2023 and is authorized to issue an unlimited number of shares in one or more series. The Trust is an open-end management investment company, registered under the 1940 Act. The Trust currently offers shares in 43 separate series, representing separate portfolios of investments. This SAI relates solely to the Funds, which are non-diversified. Each Fund, as a series of the Trust, represents a beneficial interest in a separate portfolio of securities and other assets, with its own objective and policies.

Roundhill Financial Inc. serves as each Fund's investment adviser ("Roundhill" or the "Adviser"). Exchange Traded Concepts, LLC, serves as each Fund's investment sub-adviser ("ETC" or the "Sub-Adviser"). Foreside Fund Services, LLC serves as each Fund's distributor ("Foreside" or the "Distributor").

The Board of Trustees of the Trust (the "Board of Trustees" or the "Trustees") has the right to establish additional series in the future, to determine the preferences, voting powers, rights and privileges thereof and to modify such preferences, voting powers, rights and privileges without shareholder approval. Shares of any series may also be divided into one or more classes at the discretion of the Trustees. The Trust or any series or class thereof may be terminated at any time by the Board of Trustees upon written notice to the shareholders. Subject to the requirements set forth in Section 3816 of the Delaware Statutory Trust Act, a shareholder of a Fund may bring a derivative action on behalf of the Trust only if the shareholder first makes a pre-suit demand upon the Board of Trustees to bring the subject action unless an effort to cause the Board of Trustees to bring such action is excused. A demand on the Board of Trustees shall only be excused if a majority of the Board of Trustees, or a majority of any committee established to consider the merits of such action, has a material personal financial interest in the action at issue. A Trustee shall not be deemed to have a material personal financial interest in an action or otherwise be disqualified from ruling on a shareholder demand by virtue of the fact that such Trustee receives remuneration from his or her service on the Board of Trustees of the Trust or on the boards of one or more investment companies with the same or an affiliated investment adviser or underwriter.

Each Fund's shares ("Fund Shares") list and principally trade on Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc. (the "Exchange"). Fund Shares trade on the Exchange at market prices that may be below, at or above a Fund's net asset value ("NAV"). ETFs, such as the Funds, do not sell or redeem an individual Fund Shares. Instead, a Fund offers, issues and redeems Fund Shares at NAV only in aggregations of a specified number of Fund Shares (each a "Creation Unit"). Financial entities known as "authorized participants" (which are discussed in greater detail below) have contractual arrangements with a Fund or the Distributor to purchase and redeem a Fund's Shares directly with a Fund in Creation Units in exchange for the securities comprising a Fund and/or cash, or some combination thereof. Fund Shares are traded in the secondary market and elsewhere at market prices that may be at, above, or below a Fund's NAV. Fund Shares are only redeemable in Creation Units by authorized participants. An authorized participant that purchases a Creation Unit of Fund Shares deposits with a Fund a "basket" of securities and/or other assets identified by a Fund that day, and then receives the Creation Unit of Fund Shares in return for those assets. The redemption process is the reverse of the purchase process: the authorized participant redeems a Creation Unit of Fund Shares for a basket of securities and other assets. The basket is generally representative of a Fund's portfolio, and together with a cash balancing amount, it is equal to the NAV of the Fund Shares comprising the Creation Unit. Pursuant to Rule 6c-11 of the 1940 Act, a Fund may utilize baskets that are not representative of a Fund's portfolio. Such "custom baskets" are discussed in the section entitled "Creations and Redemptions of Creation Units." Transaction fees and other costs associated with creations or redemptions that include cash may be higher than the transaction fees and other costs associated with in-kind creations or redemptions. In all cases, conditions with respect to creations and redemptions of shares and fees will be

limited in accordance with the requirements of SEC rules and regulations applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities.

EXCHANGE LISTING AND TRADING

Fund Shares are listed for trading, and trade throughout the day, on the Exchange and in other secondary markets. There can be no assurance that the requirements of the Exchange necessary to maintain the listing of Fund Shares will continue to be met. The Exchange may, but is not required to, remove Fund Shares from listing if, among other things: (i) following the initial 12-month period beginning upon the commencement of trading of Fund Shares, there are fewer than 50 record and/or beneficial owners of Fund Shares; (ii) a Fund is no longer eligible to operate in reliance on Rule 6c-11 of the 1940 Act; (iii) any of the other listing requirements are not continuously maintained; or (iv) any event shall occur or condition shall exist that, in the opinion of the Exchange, makes further dealings on the Exchange inadvisable. The Exchange will also remove Fund Shares from listing and trading upon termination of a Fund.

As in the case of other stocks traded on the Exchange, brokers' commissions on transactions will be based on negotiated commission rates at customary levels.

The Trust reserves the right to adjust the price levels of Fund Shares in the future to help maintain convenient trading ranges for investors. Any adjustments would be accomplished through stock splits or reverse stock splits, which would have no effect on the net assets of a Fund.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Prospectus describes the investment objective and certain policies of each Fund. The following supplements the information contained in the Prospectus concerning the investment objective and policies of a Fund.

Each Fund is subject to the following fundamental policies, which may not be changed without approval of the holders of a majority of the outstanding voting securities (as such term is defined in the 1940 Act) of a Fund:

- (1) A Fund may not issue senior securities, except as permitted under the 1940 Act.
- (2) A Fund may not borrow money, except as permitted under the 1940 Act.
- (3) A Fund will not underwrite the securities of other issuers except to the extent a Fund may be considered an underwriter under the 1933 Act in connection with the purchase and sale of portfolio securities.
- (4) A Fund will not purchase or sell real estate or interests therein, unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments (but this shall not prohibit a Fund from purchasing or selling securities or other instruments backed by real estate or of issuers engaged in real estate activities).
- (5) A Fund may not make loans, except as permitted under the 1940 Act and exemptive orders granted thereunder.
- (6) A Fund may not purchase or sell physical commodities unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments (but this shall not prevent a Fund from purchasing or selling

options, futures contracts, forward contracts or other derivative instruments, or from investing in securities or other instruments backed by physical commodities).

(7) Roundhill ABNB WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Airbnb, Inc. ("ABNB") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which ABNB is assigned).

Roundhill ARM WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Arm Holdings plc ("ARM") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which ARM is assigned).

Roundhill ASML WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of ASML Holding N.V., Inc. ("ASML") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which ASML is assigned).

Roundhill AVGO WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Broadcom Inc. ("AVGO") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which AVGO is assigned).

Roundhill BABA WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Alibaba Group Holding Limited ("BABA") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which BABA is assigned).

Roundhill BRKB WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Class B shares of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. ("BKR/B") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which BKR/B is assigned).

Roundhill COST WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Costco Wholesale Corporation ("COST") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which COST is assigned).

Roundhill CRWD WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which Class A common shares of CrowdStrike Holdings, Inc. ("CRWD") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which CRWD is assigned).

Roundhill DKNG WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which Class A common shares

of DraftKings Inc. ("DKNG") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which DKNG is assigned).

Roundhill HOOD WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which Class A common shares of Robinhood Markets, Inc. ("DKNG") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which DKNG is assigned).

Roundhill LMT WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Lockheed Martin Corporation ("LMT") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which LMT is assigned).

Roundhill MSTR WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which Class A common shares of MicroStrategy Incorporated ("MSTR") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which MSTR is assigned).

Roundhill NFLX WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Netflix, Inc. ("NFLX") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which NFLX is assigned).

Roundhill RDDT WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Reddit, Inc. ("RDDT") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which RDDT is assigned).

Roundhill SHOP WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Shopify Inc. ("SHOP") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which SHOP is assigned).

Roundhill SPOT WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Spotify Technology S.A. ("SPOT") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which SPOT is assigned).

Roundhill TSM WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited ("TSM") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which TSM is assigned).

Roundhill UBER WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of Uber

Technologies, Inc. ("UBER") are assigned (i.e., hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which UBER is assigned).

Roundhill XOM WeeklyPayTM ETF will concentrate (*i.e.*, invest more than 25% of its total assets) its investments in the industry or group of industries to which common shares of ExxonMobil Corporation ("XOM") are assigned (*i.e.*, hold 25% or more of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry or group of industries to which XOM is assigned).

For purposes of these limitation, securities of the U.S. government (including its agencies and instrumentalities), repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government securities, and securities of state or municipal governments and their political subdivisions are not considered to be issued by members of any industry.

As of January 1, 2025, the group of industries to which each applicable security is assigned is set forth below.

Security	Assigned Industry Group	
ABNB	Consumer Services	
ARM	Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment	
ASML	Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment	
AVGO	Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment	
BABA	Consumer Discretionary Distribution & Retail	
BRK/B	Financial Services	
COST	Consumer Staples Distribution & Retail	
CRWD	Software & Services	
DKNG	Consumer Services	
HOOD	Financial Services	
LMT	Capital Goods	
MSTR	Software & Services	
NFLX	Media & Entertainment	
RDDT	Media & Entertainment	
SHOP	Software & Services	
SPOT	Media & Entertainment	

Security	Assigned Industry Group
TSM	Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment
UBER	Transportation
XOM	Energy

For purposes of applying restriction (1) above, under the 1940 Act as currently in effect, a Fund is not permitted to issue senior securities, except that a Fund may borrow from any bank if immediately after such borrowing the value of such Fund's total assets is at least 300% of the principal amount of all of such Fund's borrowings (*i.e.*, the principal amount of the borrowings may not exceed 33 1/3% of a Fund's total assets). In the event that such asset coverage shall at any time fall below 300%, such Fund shall, within three days thereafter (not including Sundays and holidays), reduce the amount of its borrowings to an extent that the asset coverage of such borrowings shall be at least 300%. The fundamental investment limitations set forth above limit a Fund's ability to engage in certain investment practices and purchase securities or other instruments to the extent permitted by, or consistent with, applicable law. As such, these limitations will change as the statute, rules, regulations or orders (or, if applicable, interpretations) change, and no shareholder vote will be required or sought.

Except for restriction (2), if a percentage restriction is adhered to at the time of investment, a later increase in percentage resulting from a change in market value of the investment or the total assets will not constitute a violation of that restriction. With respect to restriction (2), if the limitations are exceeded as a result of a change in market value then a Fund will reduce the amount of borrowings within three days thereafter to the extent necessary to comply with the limitations (not including Sundays and holidays).

For purposes of applying restriction (5) above, a Fund may not make loans to other persons, except through (i) the purchase of debt securities permissible under a Fund's investment policies, (ii) repurchase agreements, or (iii) the lending of portfolio securities, provided that no such loan of portfolio securities may be made by a Fund if, as a result, the aggregate of such loans would exceed 33-1/3% of the value of a Fund's total assets.

With respect to the fundamental policies relating to concentration set forth in (7) above, the 1940 Act does not define what constitutes "concentration" in an industry. The SEC staff has taken the position that investment of 25% or more of a fund's total assets in one or more issuers conducting their principal activities in the same industry or group of industries constitutes concentration. It is possible that interpretations of concentration could change in the future. The policy in (7) above will be interpreted to refer to concentration as that term may be interpreted from time to time. The policy also will be interpreted to permit investment without limit in the following: securities of the U.S. government and its agencies or instrumentalities; securities of state, territory, possession or municipal governments and their authorities, agencies, instrumentalities or political subdivisions; and repurchase agreements collateralized by any such obligations. Accordingly, issuers of the foregoing securities will not be considered to be members of any industry. There also will be no limit on investment in issuers domiciled in a single jurisdiction or country. Finance companies will be considered to be in the industries of their parents if their activities are primarily related to financing the activities of the parents. Each foreign government will be considered to be a member of a separate industry. With respect to a Fund's industry classifications, a Fund currently utilizes any one or more of the industry sub-classifications used by one or more widely recognized market indexes or rating group indexes, and/or as defined by a Fund's management. The policy also will be interpreted to give broad authority to a Fund as to how to classify issuers within or among industries.

The foregoing fundamental policies of a Fund may not be changed without the affirmative vote of the majority of the outstanding voting securities of such Fund. The 1940 Act defines a majority vote as the vote of the lesser of (i) 67% or more of the voting securities represented at a meeting at which more than 50% of the outstanding securities are represented; or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities. With respect to the submission of a change in an investment policy to the holders of outstanding voting securities of a Fund, such matter shall be deemed to have been effectively acted upon with respect to a Fund if a majority of the outstanding voting securities of such Fund vote for the approval of such matter, notwithstanding that such matter has not been approved by the holders of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of any other series of the Trust affected by such matter.

In addition to the foregoing fundamental policies, a Fund is also subject to strategies and policies discussed herein which, unless otherwise noted, are non-fundamental policies and may be changed by the Board of Trustees.

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

Each Fund is actively managed and seeks to achieve its investment objectives through the use of swap agreements that make weekly coupon payments to the Fund. Such swap agreements will provide each Fund with exposure to returns that correspond to approximately 1.2 times (120%) the calendar week total return of common shares of such Fund's applicable security.

Roundhill ABNB WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize ABNB as the reference asset and in shares of ABNB.

Roundhill ARM WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize ARM as the reference asset and in shares of ARM.

Roundhill ASML WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize ASML as the reference asset and in shares of ASML.

Roundhill AVGO WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize AVGO as the reference asset and in shares of AVGO.

Roundhill BABA WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize BABA as the reference asset and in shares of BABA.

Roundhill BRKB WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize BRKB as the reference asset and in shares of BRKB.

Roundhill COST WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize COST as the reference asset and in shares of COST.

Roundhill CRWD WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize CRWD as the reference asset and in shares of CRWD.

Roundhill DKNG WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize DKNG as the reference asset and in shares of DKNG.

Roundhill HOOD WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize HOOD as the reference asset and in shares of HOOD.

Roundhill LMT WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize LMT as the reference asset and in shares of LMT.

Roundhill MSTR WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize MSTR as the reference asset and in shares of MSTR.

Roundhill NFLX WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize NFLX as the reference asset and in shares of NFLX.

Roundhill RDDT WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize RDDT as the reference asset and in shares of RDDT.

Roundhill SHOP WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize SHOP as the reference asset and in shares of SHOP.

Roundhill SPOT WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize SPOT as the reference asset and in shares of SPOT.

Roundhill TSM WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize TSM as the reference asset and in shares of TSM.

Roundhill UBER WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize UBER as the reference asset and in shares of UBER.

Roundhill XOM WeeklyPayTM ETF will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in swaps that utilize XOM as the reference asset and in shares of XOM.

For purposes of compliance with these investment policies, derivative contracts will be valued at their notional value. A Fund's shareholders are entitled to 60 days' prior written notice to any change in its non-fundamental investment policy.

TYPES OF INVESTMENTS

Swap Agreements. The Funds will enter into swap agreements. Swaps are two-party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a day to more than one year. In a standard "swap" transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on a particular pre-determined interest rate, commodity, security, indexes, or other assets or measurable indicators. The gross return to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties is calculated with respect to a "notional amount," e.g., the return on, or the increase/decrease in, value of a particular reference asset.

The Funds may enter into swaps to invest in a market without owning or taking physical custody of securities. For example, in one common type of total return swap, a Fund's counterparty will agree to pay a Fund the rate at which the specified asset or indicator (e.g., an equity security) increased in value multiplied by the relevant notional amount of the swap. A Fund will agree to pay to the counterparty an interest fee (based on the notional amount) and the rate at which the specified asset or indicator decreased

in value multiplied by the notional amount of the swap, plus, in certain instances, commissions or trading spreads on the notional amount.

As a result, the swap has a similar economic effect as if a Fund were to invest in the asset underlying the swap in an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap. The return to a Fund on such swap should be the gain or loss on the notional amount plus dividends or interest on the assets less the interest paid by a Fund on the notional amount. However, unlike cash investments in the underlying assets, a Fund will not be an owner of the underlying assets and will not have voting or similar rights in respect of such assets.

Common Stocks. Common stock represents an ownership position in a company. Common stock may or may not pay dividends and may or may not carry voting rights. Common stock occupies the most junior position in a company's capital structure. Holders of common stocks incur more risk than holders of preferred stocks and debt obligations because common stockholders, as owners of the issuer, generally have inferior rights to receive payments from the issuer in comparison with the rights of creditors, or holders of debt obligations or preferred stocks. Unlike debt securities, which typically have a stated principal amount payable at maturity (whose value, however, is subject to market fluctuations prior thereto), or preferred stocks, which typically have a liquidation preference and which may have stated optional or mandatory redemption provisions, common stocks have neither a fixed principal amount nor a maturity.

Illiquid Investments. Pursuant to Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act, a Fund may not acquire any "illiquid investment" if, immediately after the acquisition, a Fund would have invested more than 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments that are assets. An "illiquid investment" is any investment that a Fund reasonably expects cannot be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market value of the investment. Illiquid investments include repurchase agreements with a notice or demand period of more than seven days, certain stripped mortgage-backed securities, certain municipal leases, certain over-the-counter derivative instruments, securities and other financial instruments that are not readily marketable, and restricted securities unless, based upon a review of the relevant market, trading and investment-specific considerations, those investments are determined not to be illiquid. The Trust has implemented a liquidity risk management program and related procedures to identify illiquid investments pursuant to Rule 22e-4, and the Board of Trustees has approved the designation of the certain officers of the Trust to administer the Trust's liquidity risk management program and related procedures. In determining whether an investment is an illiquid investment, the designated officers of the Trust will take into account actual or estimated daily transaction volume of an investment, group of related investments or asset class and other relevant market, trading, and investment-specific considerations. In addition, in determining the liquidity of an investment, the designated officers of the Trust must determine whether trading varying portions of a position in a particular portfolio investment or asset class, in sizes that a Fund would reasonably anticipate trading, is reasonably expected to significantly affect its liquidity, and if so, a Fund must take this determination into account when classifying the liquidity of that investment or asset class.

In addition to actual or estimated daily transaction volume of an investment, group of related investments or asset class and other relevant market, trading, and investment-specific considerations, the following factors, among others, will generally impact the classification of an investment as an "illiquid investment": (i) any investment that is placed on the Adviser's restricted trading list; and (ii) any investment that is delisted or for which there is a trading halt at the close of the trading day on the primary listing exchange at the time of classification (and in respect of which no active secondary market exists). Investments purchased by a Fund that are liquid at the time of purchase may subsequently become illiquid due to these and other events and circumstances. If one or more investments in a Fund's portfolio become illiquid, a Fund may exceed the 15% limitation in illiquid investments. In the event that changes in the portfolio or

other external events cause a Fund to exceed this limit, a Fund must take steps to bring its illiquid investments that are assets to or below 15% of its net assets within a reasonable period of time. This requirement would not force a Fund to liquidate any portfolio instrument where a Fund would suffer a loss on the sale of that instrument.

Short-Term Instruments and Temporary Investments. A Fund may invest in short-term instruments, including money market instruments, on an ongoing basis to provide liquidity, in connection with collateral received by a Fund in its securities lending activities, or for other reasons. Money market instruments are generally short-term investments that may include, but are not limited to: (i) shares of money market funds; (ii) obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities (including government-sponsored enterprises); (iii) negotiable certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances, fixed-time deposits and other obligations of U.S. and non-U.S. banks (including non-U.S. branches) and similar institutions; (iv) commercial paper rated, at the date of purchase, "Prime-1" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., "F-1" by Fitch Ratings, Inc., or "A-1" by Standard & Poor's® Financial Services LLC, a subsidiary of S&P Global, Inc., or if unrated, of comparable quality as determined by the Adviser and/or Sub-Adviser; (v) non-convertible corporate debt securities (e.g., bonds and debentures) with remaining maturities at the date of purchase of not more than 397 days and that satisfy the rating requirements set forth in Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act; (vi) repurchase agreements; and (vii) short-term U.S. dollar denominated obligations of non-U.S. banks (including U.S. branches) that, in the opinion of the Adviser and/or Sub-Adviser, are of comparable quality to obligations of U.S. banks that may be purchased by a Fund. Any of these instruments may be purchased on a current or forward-settled basis. Time deposits are non-negotiable deposits maintained in banking institutions for specified periods of time at stated interest rates. Bankers' acceptances are time drafts drawn on commercial banks by borrowers, usually in connection with international transactions.

PORTFOLIO TURNOVER

Each Fund buys and sells portfolio securities in the normal course of its investment activities. The proportion of a Fund's investment portfolio that is bought and sold during a year is known as a Fund's portfolio turnover rate. A turnover rate of 100% would occur, for example, if a Fund bought and sold securities valued at 100% of its net assets within one year. A high portfolio turnover rate could result in the payment by a Fund of increased brokerage costs, expenses and taxes.

INVESTMENT RISKS

Overview

An investment in a Fund should be made with an understanding of the risks that an investment in a Fund's Shares entails, including the risk that the financial condition of the issuers of the equity securities or the general condition of the securities market may worsen and the value of the securities and therefore the value of a Fund may decline. A Fund may not be an appropriate investment for those who are unable or unwilling to assume the risks involved generally with such an investment. The past market and earnings performance of any of the securities included in a Fund is not predictive of their future performance.

Borrowing and Leverage Risk

When a Fund borrows money, it must pay interest and other fees, which will reduce a Fund's returns if such costs exceed the returns on the portfolio securities purchased or retained with such borrowings. Any such borrowings are intended to be temporary. However, under certain market conditions, including periods of

low demand or decreased liquidity, such borrowings might be outstanding for longer periods of time. As prescribed by the 1940 Act, a Fund will be required to maintain specified asset coverage of at least 300% with respect to any bank borrowing immediately following such borrowing. A Fund may be required to dispose of assets on unfavorable terms if market fluctuations or other factors reduce a Fund's asset coverage to less than the prescribed amount.

Cybersecurity Risk

A Fund is susceptible to potential operational risks through breaches in cybersecurity. A breach in cybersecurity refers to both intentional and unintentional events that may cause a Fund to lose proprietary information, suffer data corruption or lose operational capacity. Such events could cause a Fund to incur regulatory penalties, reputational damage, additional compliance costs associated with corrective measures and/or financial loss. Cybersecurity breaches may involve unauthorized access to a Fund's digital information systems through "hacking" or malicious software coding, but may also result from outside attacks such as denial-of-service attacks through efforts to make network services unavailable to intended users. In addition, cybersecurity breaches of a Fund's third party service providers, such as its administrator, transfer agent, custodian, or sub-adviser, as applicable, or issuers in which a Fund invests, can also subject a Fund to many of the same risks associated with direct cybersecurity breaches. A Fund has established risk management systems designed to reduce the risks associated with cybersecurity. However, there is no guarantee that such efforts will succeed, especially because a Fund does not directly control the cybersecurity systems of issuers or third party service providers.

Derivatives Risk

The use of derivatives presents risks different from, and possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in traditional securities. The use of derivatives can lead to losses because of adverse movements in the price or value of the underlying asset, index or rate, which may be magnified by certain features of the derivatives. In addition, when a Fund invests in certain derivative securities, including, but not limited to, when-issued securities, forward commitments, futures contracts and interest rate swaps, a Fund is effectively leveraging its investments, which could result in exaggerated changes in the net asset value of a Fund's shares and can result in losses that exceed the amount originally invested. The success of Sub-

Advisor's derivatives strategies will depend on its ability to assess and predict the impact of marketore conomic developments on the underlying asset, index or rate and the derivative itself, without the benefit of observing the performance of the derivative under all possible market conditions. Liquidity risk exists when a security cannot be purchased or sold at the time desired, or cannot be purchased or sold without adversely affecting the price. Certain specific risks associated with an investment in derivatives may include: market risk, credit risk, correlation risk, liquidity risk, legal risk and systemic or "interconnection" risk, as specified below.

1. Market Risk. Market risk is the risk that the value of the underlying assets may go up or down. Adverse movements in the value of an underlying asset can expose a Fund to losses. Derivative instruments may include elements of leverage and, accordingly, fluctuations in the value of the derivative instrument in relation to the underlying asset may be magnified. The successful use of derivative instruments depends upon a variety of factors, particularly the portfolio managers' ability to predict movements of the securities, currencies and commodities markets, which may require different skills than predicting changes in the prices of individual securities. There can be no assurance that any particular strategy adopted will succeed. A decision to engage in a derivative transaction will reflect the portfolio managers' judgment that the derivative transaction will provide value to a Fund and its shareholders and is consistent with a Fund's objective, investment limitations

- and operating policies. In making such a judgment, the portfolio managers will analyze the benefits and risks of the derivative transactions and weigh them in the context of a Fund's overall investments and investment objective.
- 2. Credit Risk/Counterparty Risk. Credit risk is the risk that a loss may be sustained as a result of the failure of a counterparty to comply with the terms of a derivative instrument. The counterparty risk for exchange-traded derivatives is generally less than for privately negotiated or over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives, since generally a clearing agency, which is the issuer or counterparty to each exchange-traded instrument, provides a guarantee of performance. For privately negotiated instruments, there is no similar clearing agency guarantee. In all transactions, a Fund will bear the risk that the counterparty will default, and this could result in a loss of the expected benefit of the derivative transactions and possibly other losses to a Fund. A Fund will enter into transactions in derivative instruments only with counterparties that the Adviser reasonably believes are capable of performing under the contract.
- 3. Correlation Risk. Correlation risk is the risk that there might be an imperfect correlation, or even no correlation, between price movements of a derivative instrument and price movements of investments being hedged. When a derivative transaction is used to completely hedge another position, changes in the market value of the combined position (the derivative instrument plus the position being hedged) result from an imperfect correlation between the price movements of the two instruments. With a perfect hedge, the value of the combined position remains unchanged with any change in the price of the underlying asset. With an imperfect hedge, the value of the derivative instrument and its hedge are not perfectly correlated. For example, if the value of a derivative instrument used in a short hedge (such as writing a call option, buying a put option or selling a futures contract) increased by less than the decline in value of the hedged investments, the hedge would not be perfectly correlated. This might occur due to factors unrelated to the value of the investments being hedged, such as speculative or other pressures on the markets in which these instruments are traded. The effectiveness of hedges using instruments on indices will depend, in part, on the degree of correlation between price movements in the index and the price movements in the investments being hedged.
- 4. Liquidity Risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that a derivative instrument cannot be sold, closed out or replaced quickly at or very close to its fundamental value. Generally, exchange contracts are very liquid because the exchange clearinghouse is the counterparty of every contract. OTC transactions are less liquid than exchange-traded derivatives since they often can only be closed out with the other party to the transaction. A Fund might be required to maintain segregated accounts and/or make margin payments when taking positions in derivative instruments involving obligations to third parties (i.e., instruments other than purchase options). If a Fund is unable to close out its positions in such instruments, it might be required to continue to maintain such assets or accounts or make such payments until the position expires, matures or is closed out. These requirements might impair a Fund's ability to sell a security or make an investment at a time when it would otherwise be favorable to do so, or require that a Fund sell a portfolio security at a disadvantageous time. A Fund's ability to sell or close out a position in an instrument prior to expiration or maturity depends upon the existence of a liquid secondary market or, in the absence of such a market, the ability and willingness of the counterparty to enter into a transaction closing out the position. Due to liquidity risk, there is no assurance that any derivatives position can be sold or closed out at a time and price that is favorable to a Fund.

- 5. Legal Risk. Legal risk is the risk of loss caused by the unenforceability of a party's obligations under the derivative. While a party seeking price certainty agrees to surrender the potential upside in exchange for downside protection, the party taking the risk is looking for a positive payoff. Despite this voluntary assumption of risk, a counterparty that has lost money in a derivative transaction may try to avoid payment by exploiting various legal uncertainties about certain derivative products.
- 6. Systemic or "Interconnection" Risk. Systemic or "interconnection" risk is the risk that a disruption in the financial markets will cause difficulties for all market participants. In other words, a disruption in one market will spill over into other markets, perhaps creating a chain reaction. Much of the OTC derivatives market takes place among the OTC dealers themselves, thus creating a large interconnected web of financial obligations. This interconnectedness raises the possibility that a default by one large dealer could create losses for other dealers and destabilize the entire market for OTC derivative instruments.

Issuer-Specific Investing Risks

Each Fund will have significant exposure to its underlying reference security through its investments in options that utilize that security as the reference asset. Accordingly, each Fund will subject to the risks of that security, set forth below.

ABNB Issuer-Specific Risks (ABNW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. The short-term rental market is highly competitive, with ABNB facing challenges from traditional hotels, emerging short-term rental platforms and online travel agencies. Increased competition could lead to reduced market share, pressure on pricing, and higher marketing expenses. ABNB's revenue depends on the availability of hosts and the demand from guests. Factors such as economic downturns, travel restrictions, or health crises (e.g., pandemics) can lead to decreased travel demand, affecting booking rates and occupancy. ABNB operates in numerous jurisdictions, each with its own set of laws and regulations concerning short-term rentals. Changes in local laws, zoning restrictions, or the introduction of stricter regulations could limit the availability of listings, impose fines, or lead to suspension of services in key markets. As a digital platform, ABNB's operations depend on robust IT systems, including website functionality, mobile applications and data security measures. Technical failures, cyberattacks or data breaches could disrupt services, compromise user data and erode trust in the platform. A significant portion of ABNB's revenue is derived from popular tourist destinations. Economic challenges, natural disasters, or political instability in these areas can lead to reduced bookings and financial losses. ABNB's decentralized model means it has limited control over the quality and safety of listings. Negative guest experiences, property damages, or safety incidents can lead to reputational harm and potential legal liabilities.

ARM Issuer-Specific Risks (ARMW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. ARM operates in the highly competitive semiconductor industry, where rapid technological innovation and shifting market dynamics can significantly impact its business. The company's licensing-based revenue model relies on its ability to maintain a competitive edge in chip design, particularly in central processing units (CPUs), graphics processing

units (GPUs), and artificial intelligence (AI) accelerators. Any loss of market share to competing architectures could negatively affect revenue and profitability. Unlike other semiconductor companies, ARM primarily generates revenue through licensing fees and royalties from semiconductor manufacturers. A decline in demand for ARM-based designs, reductions in royalty rates, or changes in customer relationships could materially impact ARM's earnings. A significant portion of ARM's revenue from this model is derived from a few major customers. Any deterioration in these relationships, whether due to strategic shifts, legal disputes, or competitive developments, could lead to revenue losses. Additionally, major chipmakers could develop in-house architectures to reduce reliance on ARM's designs. ARM designs semiconductors but does not manufacture them, relying heavily on third-party foundries, particularly Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company (TSMC) and Samsung. Geopolitical tensions between the U.S., China and Taiwan could disrupt ARM's supply chain, increasing costs or limiting access to key manufacturing partners. Additionally, export controls or sanctions targeting ARM's technology could hinder its ability to do business in certain regions. ARM has faced scrutiny from global regulators, especially after its attempted acquisition by Nvidia was blocked due to antitrust concerns. As ARM expands its presence in AI, cloud computing, and automotive semiconductors, it could face additional regulatory hurdles and litigation related to intellectual property rights, antitrust laws and data security. ARM's revenue is heavily reliant on licensing and royalty fees from customers in North America, Asia, and Europe, which are often denominated in U.S. dollars and other foreign currencies. However, many of ARM's operational costs, including employee salaries, research and development expenses, and corporate overheads, are incurred in GBP. A stronger GBP relative to the U.S. dollar and other currencies could lead to reduced profitability by making ARM's products more expensive for international customers while increasing the relative cost of GBP-denominated expenses.

ASML Issuer-Specific Risks (ASMW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. ASML operates in the highly competitive semiconductor industry, where rapid technological innovation and shifting market dynamics can significantly impact its business. ASML's advanced extreme ultraviolet (EUV) and deep ultraviolet (DUV) lithography equipment is subject to export controls imposed by the Dutch government, the European Union, and the United States. Restrictions on sales to specific regions, particularly China, could limit ASML's revenue growth opportunities. Ongoing trade disputes between the U.S. and China have led to increased regulatory scrutiny and export controls that could limit ASML's ability to sell high-end lithography machines to Chinese customers. Any escalation in trade restrictions or sanctions could reduce ASML's market access and growth potential. ASML relies on a complex global supply chain, including suppliers of highly specialized components such as optics, lasers, and precision machinery. Delays in obtaining critical components, labor shortages, or disruptions due to natural disasters, pandemics, or geopolitical events could impact ASML's ability to meet customer demand. ASML sources key components, such as high-performance mirrors and lenses, from limited suppliers. Any production or quality issues at these suppliers could delay ASML's product deliveries. ASML earns a substantial portion of its revenue from customers in the United States and Asia, often denominated in U.S. dollars and other foreign currencies. However, a significant share of its costs, including research and development, manufacturing, and operational expenses, are incurred in euros. A strong euro relative to U.S. dollars or other key currencies could reduce ASML's profitability by making its products more expensive for international customers while increasing the relative cost of euro-denominated expenses.

AVGO Issuer-Specific Risks (AVGW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. AVGO operates in the highly competitive semiconductor industry, where rapid technological innovation and shifting market dynamics can significantly impact its business. AVGO relies on a concentrated customer base and an extensive supply chain to manufacture and distribute its products. A significant portion of AVGO's revenue comes from a few major customers, including large smartphone manufacturers, cloud service providers and networking companies. The loss of a key customer or reduced orders could materially impact revenue. AVGO depends on a complex global supply chain for semiconductor fabrication, components, and raw materials. Disruptions due to geopolitical tensions, natural disasters or trade restrictions could impact production and delivery schedules. AVGO outsources a substantial portion of its semiconductor manufacturing to third-party foundries such as Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company (TSMC). Any capacity constraints, pricing changes, or disruptions at these foundries could negatively affect AVGO's ability to meet demand. AVGO operates in a highly regulated industry and is exposed to geopolitical risks that could affect its business. AVGO's ability to sell semiconductor products internationally, particularly in China, is subject to trade policies, export controls, and government-imposed restrictions. U.S. sanctions or export limitations on chip technology could reduce AVGO's market access and revenue. Given AVGO's presence in global markets, trade tensions between the U.S. and China could impact its business operations, supply chain, and customer relationships. Any escalation of trade conflicts, tariffs, or restrictions on semiconductor exports could materially affect financial performance. AVGO has faced antitrust investigations and regulatory scrutiny regarding its business practices. Changes in antitrust laws, new regulatory enforcement, or limitations on acquisitions could impact its business strategy. AVGO has taken on significant debt to finance acquisitions. Increased leverage could lead to higher interest expenses, reduced financial flexibility, and potential credit rating downgrades. AVGO earns a significant portion of its revenue from international markets, including Asia, Europe, and Latin America, where sales may be denominated in currencies such as the euro, Japanese yen, British pound and Chinese yuan. However, a large share of Broadcom's manufacturing, operating expenses, and supply chain costs are denominated in other currencies, creating an exposure to currency fluctuations that could affect profit margins. Foreign-denominated revenue and assets must be translated into U.S. dollar for financial reporting purposes. If the U.S. dollar strengthens relative to other currencies, AVGO's reported earnings and revenue from international markets may decline, even if local currency sales remain stable. Additionally, AVGO faces transaction risks when converting foreign currency earnings into U.S. dollars, as unfavorable exchange rate movements could reduce profitability.

BABA Issuer-Specific Risks (BABW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. BABA operates in China, where the regulatory landscape is complex and subject to rapid changes. The Chinese government plays a significant role in the country's economic policies. Sudden regulatory changes, monetary policy shifts, or government interventions could impact BABA's business operations and investor confidence. For example, tightening regulations on fintech services, e-commerce pricing, or data security could increase operational costs and compliance burdens. The Chinese government has increased its regulatory scrutiny of large technology companies, implementing antitrust measures, data security regulations, and stricter financial oversight. Any additional government intervention could impose operational restrictions, fines, or business restructuring requirements on BABA. China has implemented strict

data security laws, such as the Personal Information Protection Law, which impose compliance requirements on companies handling large volumes of consumer data. If BABA fails to comply, it could face fines, restrictions, or operational setbacks. The U.S. government has previously imposed sanctions on Chinese technology companies and BABA could face similar scrutiny in the future. Sanctions or restrictions on BABA or its subsidiaries (e.g., Ant Group) could impact revenue, growth prospects, and investor confidence. BABA competes with other Chinese e-commerce giants and large international companies. Price competition, innovation, and customer preferences could impact BABA's market share and profitability. BABA's core e-commerce business is heavily reliant on Chinese consumer spending, which is influenced by macroeconomic conditions, disposable income levels, and regulatory policies. A slowdown in economic growth or reduced consumer confidence in China could impact BABA's revenue. A weakening Chinese economy, high youth unemployment, or declining consumer confidence could reduce BABA's sales and earnings growth. BABA's revenue growth has been impacted by regulatory fines, changes in consumer behavior, and increased investments in new business ventures. Any significant revenue slowdown could negatively affect the stock price. BABA reports its financial results in Chinese yuan, but its shares trade as American Depositary Shares in U.S. dollars. Changes in exchange rates between the Chinese yuan and U.S. dollar may impact the value of BABA's stock, dividends, and reported earnings for U.S. investors.

BRK/B Issuer-Specific Risks (BRKW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. BRK/B operates a vast portfolio of businesses across multiple industries, making it challenging to efficiently manage, allocate capital, and respond swiftly to industry-specific disruptions. While diversification can mitigate risks, downturns in multiple industries simultaneously, such as insurance losses from natural disasters, declines in consumer spending affecting retail and manufacturing, or regulatory changes impacting financial services, could lead to broad-based losses. BRK/B's core business includes insurance subsidiaries. The company is exposed to underwriting losses from catastrophic events (e.g., hurricanes, earthquakes, pandemics) that could lead to significant claims payouts, reducing profitability. BRK/B has long been associated with Warren Buffett's leadership and investment philosophy. Although a succession plan is in place, the transition to new leadership could impact investor confidence and long-term strategic decision-making. BRK/B allows its subsidiaries to operate with significant autonomy. While this reduces operational bureaucracy, it also increases the risk of inefficient capital allocation, governance challenges, and potential mismanagement at the subsidiary level. Many of BRK/B's businesses, including rail transportation, manufacturing, and retail, are cyclical and dependent on economic growth. A slowdown in economic activity could reduce revenue across multiple segments. Declining consumer spending, supply chain disruptions, or global trade uncertainties could impact BRK/B's subsidiaries and investment holdings.

COST Issuer-Specific Risks (COSW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. The retail sector is highly competitive, with COST facing challenges from other warehouse clubs, traditional brick-and-mortar retailers and other large e-commerce companies. While COST has a strong physical presence, it has been slower to adapt to the growing e-commerce trend compared to some competitors. This lag could affect its ability to capture online market share. A significant portion of COST's revenue comes from membership fees. Any decline in membership renewal rates or new sign-ups could adversely affect financial

performance. COST's performance is tied to consumer spending, which can be influenced by economic downturns, inflation, or changes in disposable income levels. Economic challenges could lead to reduced consumer spending, impacting sales.

CRWD Issuer-Specific Risks (CRWW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. CRWD faces competition from established cybersecurity firms. Increased competition could lead to pricing pressure, market share losses and customer churn. The cybersecurity industry evolves rapidly, with new threats, AI-driven security advancements, and emerging attack vectors. Failure to innovate or adapt to evolving threats could weaken CRWD's competitive position. CRWD's business model relies heavily on recurring subscription-based revenue. Slower-than-expected customer acquisition or increased subscription cancellations could impact revenue growth and profitability. Despite being a cybersecurity company, CRWD itself is a target for cyberattacks, data breaches and hacking attempts. A significant security incident could damage customer trust, lead to regulatory scrutiny, and negatively impact its reputation. CRWD's platform operates on cloud-based infrastructure, which relies on third-party providers. Any disruptions, outages, or security breaches at cloud service providers could impact CRWD's ability to deliver its services. CRWD generates revenue from large enterprise and government contracts, which can be subject to long sales cycles, budget cuts, and renewal uncertainties. The demand for skilled cybersecurity professionals is high, and CRWD competes for top talent. Talent shortages, employee attrition, or failure to attract cybersecurity experts could impact innovation and service quality. CRWD must comply with global data privacy and cybersecurity laws, including General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), and evolving U.S. federal regulations. Failure to meet compliance standards could result in fines, legal actions, and restrictions on business operations. CRWD operates globally and may face risks from trade restrictions, data localization laws, and geopolitical tensions. Changes in international cybersecurity regulations could limit market access or increase compliance costs.

DKNG Issuer-Specific Risks (DKNW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. DKNG operates in a highly regulated industry, with varying legal frameworks across U.S. states and international markets. Changes in gambling laws, potential restrictions, or new compliance requirements could limit market expansion or increase operational costs. While sports betting is expanding at the state level, potential federal regulations or bans on certain betting activities could negatively impact DKNG's business model. DKNG requires multiple licenses to operate in different jurisdictions. Regulatory issues or failure to maintain compliance with gaming laws could lead to fines, license revocations, or operational disruptions. DKNG's business model is fully digital, making it dependent on app functionality, server reliability and payment processing systems. Any outages, technical failures, or cybersecurity breaches could result in lost revenue and reputational damage. Online gaming companies are frequent targets for hacking, data breaches, account takeovers, and fraud. A major cyberattack could compromise customer data and lead to legal liabilities. DKNG faces strong competition from other online and retail sportsbooks. Increased competition could lead to higher marketing expenses, customer acquisition costs, and pressure on margins. As more states legalize sports betting, competition may lead to slower user growth and increased costs to retain customers. Promotional offers and free bets may become less effective over time. DKNG's revenue depends on consumer discretionary spending on entertainment and betting. Economic downturns, rising inflation, job

losses, or reduced disposable income could lead to lower betting activity and user engagement. Expanding into international markets presents challenges related to local gambling laws, taxation, and regulatory hurdles. Changes in international gaming policies could impact revenue growth potential.

HOOD Issuer-Specific Risks (HOOW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. HOOD competes with traditional brokerages and fintech rivals. Increased competition may lead to pricing pressures, customer churn and the need for costly product innovations. A large portion of HOOD's revenue comes from options and crypto trading, which are highly volatile. Changes in trading behavior, regulatory actions or customer attrition could materially impact earnings. HOOD also generates income from margin lending and interest on customer cash balances. Rising interest rates may improve margins, but they could also reduce borrowing demand and market participation, negatively impacting trading volume. HOOD has experienced trading outages and technical failures, particularly during periods of high market volatility. These disruptions have resulted in customer complaints, regulatory fines, and lawsuits, posing a significant operational risk. As a digital brokerage, HOOD is exposed to hacking attempts, account breaches, and identity theft risks. A significant security incident could harm user trust and lead to regulatory consequences. HOOD routes trades through third-party market makers. If key partners face financial distress or regulatory scrutiny, HOOD's ability to execute trades efficiently could be impacted. HOOD operates in the highly regulated brokerage and financial services industry, subject to oversight from the SEC, FINRA, and other regulatory bodies. Changes in financial regulations could increase compliance costs, limit business practices, or lead to operational restrictions. HOOD has faced multiple class-action lawsuits, regulatory fines, and customer complaints related to trading outages, margin lending practices, and risk disclosures. Any further legal actions could result in financial penalties and reputational damage. A significant portion of HOOD's revenue comes from payment for order flow, which has been criticized by regulators. A potential ban or restriction on payment for order flow could impact HOOD's business model and revenue stream. HOOD's customer base is primarily retail investors, who may trade less frequently during economic downturns or bearish markets. A decline in speculative trading activity could reduce revenue.

LMT Issuer-Specific Risks (LMTW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. A significant portion of LMT's revenue comes from U.S. Department of Defense contracts. Any reductions in U.S. defense budgets, sequestration or shifts in government spending priorities could negatively impact earnings. In addition, LMT relies on international government contracts, which are subject to foreign regulatory approvals, trade restrictions, and geopolitical considerations. A decline in global defense spending or policy shifts restricting arms exports could reduce revenue opportunities. LMT operates under fixed-price and cost-plus contracts, which can expose the company to cost overruns, performance penalties, or cancellations if project expectations are not met. The company is subject to strict U.S. government regulations, including International Traffic in Arms Regulations and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Compliance failures could result in fines, contract restrictions or reputational damage. LMT is a target for cyberattacks, espionage, and data breaches. Intellectual property theft, espionage, or insider threats could compromise strategic programs. A significant cybersecurity incident could compromise national security projects and lead to regulatory scrutiny. LMT relies on a complex supply chain for advanced materials, semiconductors, and defense components. Disruptions due to supplier failures, trade restrictions, or raw material shortages could impact production timelines. LMT's operations involve long-term defense contracts and capital-intensive research and development projects. Rising interest rates and inflation could increase costs and reduce contract profitability.

MSTR Issuer-Specific Risks (MSTW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. MSTR holds billions of dollars in bitcoin as part of its corporate treasury strategy. Its stock price is highly correlated with bitcoin's price movements, making it more volatile than traditional technology stocks. Governments worldwide are increasing regulatory oversight on digital assets, including bitcoin. Any new taxation policies, restrictions on corporate bitcoin holdings, or changes in accounting rules could impact MSTR's financial position. To acquire more bitcoin, MSTR has issued debt and convertible notes. If bitcoin's price declines significantly, the company could face margin calls, liquidity shortages or difficulties in refinancing debt obligations, MSTR competes with major business intelligence and data analytics firms. These competitors may offer more advanced features, better integration, or superior cloud-based solutions. While MSTR generates revenue from its software offerings, the company's bitcoin focus may affect its ability to retain enterprise customers who prefer providers with a long-term focus on product development. Bitcoin is often viewed as a speculative asset, and macroeconomic factors such as recession fears, liquidity constraints, or monetary tightening could drive significant fluctuations in MSTR's stock price.

NFLX Issuer-Specific Risks (NFLW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. NFLX faces significant competition from both traditional media companies and digital streaming services. Increased competition could lead to subscriber churn, pricing pressure, and higher content acquisition costs. As NFLX reaches high penetration in key markets, particularly North America and Europe, sustaining subscriber growth may become more difficult. Expansion in emerging markets faces challenges such as lower consumer purchasing power and infrastructure limitations. NFLX's business model relies on continuous investment in original programming and licensed content. Rising production costs, licensing fees, or underperformance of new content could negatively impact profitability. NFLX's also success depends on its ability to consistently produce and distribute compelling content that retains and attracts subscribers. A decline in content quality or user engagement could lead to higher cancellation rates. Lastly, NFLX depends on licensing agreements for third-party content. The loss or renegotiation of key licensing deals could reduce the available content library and weaken subscriber appeal. NFLX's business depends on the reliability of internet service providers, cloud computing infrastructure, and its proprietary recommendation algorithm. Any technical failures, outages, or cyberattacks could disrupt service and impact user retention.

RDDT Issuer-Specific Risks (RDDW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. RDDT competes with other social media and content platforms for user attention and advertising dollars. The dynamic nature of the industry requires continuous innovation to maintain and grow its user base amidst evolving consumer

preferences. A significant portion of RDDT's revenue is derived from advertising. Economic downturns, changes in advertising budgets, or shifts in digital advertising trends could materially impact the company's financial health. RDDT's platform relies heavily on user-generated content and active community participation. Any decline in user engagement or growth, as evidenced by recent reports of slower-than-expected user growth, could adversely affect advertising revenue and overall platform vitality. Given the vast amount of user-generated content, RDDT faces potential legal challenges related to hosting controversial or infringing material. Increased regulatory scrutiny or changes in content liability laws could necessitate stricter moderation policies, potentially impacting user experience and engagement. As a digital platform, RDDT is susceptible to technical issues, data breaches and cyberattacks. Ensuring robust cybersecurity measures and platform stability is crucial to maintaining user trust and preventing potential financial and reputational damage.

SHOP Issuer-Specific Risks (SHOW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. SHOP faces significant competition. Increased competition could lead to pricing pressure, customer churn and higher acquisition costs. A large portion of SHOP's customer base consists of small and mid-sized business and entrepreneurs, which are more vulnerable to economic downturns, inflation and shifts in consumer behavior. A decline in new business creation could impact SHOP's revenue growth. SHOP generates revenue from subscription fees and merchant services. Any slowdown in merchant adoption, lower transaction volumes, or loss of large enterprise customers could impact revenue. SHOP's revenue depends on merchant sales performance, which is influenced by consumer spending trends, economic conditions, inflation and supply chain disruptions. A decline in discretionary spending could negatively impact transaction volume. SHOP's cloud-based infrastructure requires constant upkeep and security. Any platform outages, service disruptions or cyberattacks could impact merchant trust and lead to financial losses. SHOP handles large volumes of merchant and consumer data, making it subject to data protection regulations. Stricter compliance requirements or security breaches could result in legal liabilities and reputational damage. SHOP earns revenue in multiple currencies, exposing it to currency fluctuations and macroeconomic instability in key markets. A strong U.S. dollar could negatively impact international revenue.

SPOT Issuer-Specific Risks (SPOW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. SPOT faces significant competition from other streaming services, satellite radio services and social media platforms for user attention and advertising dollars. In mature markets like North America and Europe, SPOT faces slower subscriber growth and increased churn rates. Future growth depends on expansion into emerging markets, which may have lower revenue per user and higher regulatory risks. SPOT does not own the majority of its music content. Rising content acquisition costs and exclusivity deals could impact long-term profitability. One of SPOT's largest expenses is royalty payments to music rights holders, including record labels, artists and publishers. Any increase in royalty rates or unfavorable renegotiations could pressure margins. While SPOT has expanded its ad-supported revenue model, advertising revenue remains highly cyclical and sensitive to economic downturns. A slowdown in digital ad spending could negatively impact SPOT's profitability. SPOT operates a cloud-based digital streaming platform that relies on third-party infrastructure providers. Server outages, cybersecurity threats or data breaches could disrupt services and impact user trust. SPOT subscriptions are discretionary

spending items. Economic downturns or inflationary pressures could lead to higher subscription cancellations. Spotify operates globally, generating revenue in multiple currencies. Exchange rate fluctuations can impact reported earnings and financial performance.

TSM Issuer-Specific Risks (TSMW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. TSM operates in the highly competitive semiconductor industry, where rapid technological innovation and shifting market dynamics can significantly impact its business. TSM is a leader in producing cutting-edge chips, but delays in technological advancements, production bottlenecks, or yield issues could impact its competitive position. TSM relies on critical suppliers for extreme ultraviolet lithography equipment and various material suppliers. Any shortages, export restrictions, or supplier disruptions could delay chip production and increase costs. TSM invests billions annually in expanding and upgrading its fabrication plants. If capital expenditures fail to generate expected returns, it could impact profitability. A significant portion of TSM's revenue comes from a few key customers. Loss of a major customer or a shift toward in-house chip production could impact revenue. TSM's financial performance is highly cyclical, with demand fluctuating based on global technology trends, economic conditions, and inventory cycles in the semiconductor industry. Demand for semiconductors is closely tied to consumer electronics, automotive, and data center markets. Economic downturns, inflationary pressures, or reduced consumer spending could lower chip demand and impact TSM's revenue. TSM reports its earnings in New Taiwan dollars but earns a significant portion of revenue in U.S. dollars. A stronger New Taiwan dollar relative to the U.S. dollar could negatively impact financial performance when revenue is converted.

TSM is headquartered in Taiwan, a region that faces geopolitical tensions with China. Any escalation in cross-strait relations, trade restrictions, military conflicts, or political instability could disrupt TSM's operations and supply chain. As a key supplier to global semiconductor firms, TSM must comply with export control laws, intellectual property protections, and international trade regulations. Any changes in U.S. or Taiwanese policies could impact its ability to sell advanced chips to certain markets. The semiconductor industry is at the center of U.S.-China trade disputes, and TSM is impacted by export restrictions on advanced chip technology. New restrictions on chip exports to China or geopolitical disputes could limit revenue growth. The semiconductor industry is vulnerable to intellectual property theft, industrial espionage, and cyberattacks. A security breach or loss of proprietary technology could weaken TSMC's competitive position.

UBER Issuer-Specific Risks (UBEW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. UBER faces strong competition from other ride-sharing companies, local taxi services, and public transportation. Increased competition could lead to pricing pressure, driver shortages, and customer acquisition costs. UBER has historically prioritized growth over profitability, and while it has made strides toward positive cash flow, sustained profitability remains a challenge due to high operating costs and driver incentives. Higher fuel prices, labor costs, and insurance premiums could squeeze UBER's margins, particularly if the company is unable to pass these costs onto consumers without affecting demand. UBER's revenue is closely tied to consumer spending and travel activity. Economic downturns, recessions, or reductions in business travel could lead to a decline in rides and delivery orders. UBER has faced passenger and driver safety concerns, including lawsuits related to driver background checks and incidents of misconduct.

Negative publicity could damage brand reputation and reduce ridership. UBER's business model relies on independent contractors (drivers and couriers). Regulatory changes in worker classification – such as efforts to classify drivers as employees rather than independent contractors – could significantly increase costs related to wages, benefits, and compliance. UBER operates in multiple jurisdictions, each with different transportation, safety, and licensing laws. Stricter regulations, citylevel bans, or additional fees could impact its ability to operate profitably in key markets. UBER faces ongoing lawsuits related to antitrust issues, passenger safety, driver treatment, and competitive practices. Any adverse rulings or settlements could result in financial penalties and reputational harm.

XOM Issuer-Specific Risks (XOMW). Issuer-specific attributes may cause an investment held by the Fund to be more volatile than the market generally. The value of an individual security or particular type of security may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. XOM's revenue and profitability are highly dependent on the prices of crude oil, natural gas, and refined petroleum products. Prices are influenced by global supply and demand dynamics, geopolitical events, OPEC production decisions and economic conditions. A prolonged downturn in oil prices, as seen in past commodity cycles, could negatively impact cash flow, capital expenditures, and profitability. Conversely, sharp increases in energy prices could lead to political pressures and demand destruction. Lower crude oil prices can impact XOM's upstream earnings, while higher crude costs may reduce refining margins, affecting downstream profitability. XOM is subject to increasingly stringent environmental laws and global decarbonization efforts. Regulations such as carbon taxes, emissions caps, and renewable energy mandates could impact long-term profitability. Investors, governments, and activist groups are demanding greater transparency and commitment to net-zero emissions targets. This could lead to higher compliance costs, stranded asset risks, and capital reallocation toward lower-carbon energy sources. XOM operates in regions such as the Middle East, Africa, Russia and Latin America, where political instability, sanctions, or military conflicts could disrupt operations and supply chains. The global push for clean energy and electrification could reduce demand for oil and gas over the long term. Advances in electric vehicles, battery storage, and renewable energy adoption may impact XOM's future revenue streams. Oil and gas exploration is inherently risky with uncertain reserves, project delays, cost overruns, and potential dry wells affecting profitability.

Indirect Investment Risk. None of the underlying reference securities are affiliated with the Trust, the Funds, the Adviser, the Sub-Adviser or any affiliates thereof and is not involved with this offering in any way, and has no obligation to consider the Funds in taking any corporate actions that might affect the value of a Fund. The Trust, the Funds, the Adviser, the Sub-Adviser or any affiliate are not responsible for the performance of any underlying reference securities and make no representation as to the performance of such securities. Investing in the Funds is not equivalent to investing in the underlying reference securities. Fund shareholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or other distributions or any other rights with respect such securities.

Liquidity Risk

The Funds may have investments that they may not be able to dispose of or close out readily at a favorable time or price (or at all), or at a price approximating a Fund's valuation of the investment. For example, certain investments may be subject to restrictions on resale, may trade over-the-counter or in limited volume, or may not have an active trading market. Illiquid securities may trade at a discount from comparable, more liquid investments and may be subject to wide fluctuations in market value. It may be difficult for a Fund to value illiquid securities accurately. The market for certain investments may become

illiquid under adverse market or economic conditions independent of any specific adverse changes in the conditions of a particular issuer. If a Fund needed to sell a large block of illiquid securities to meet shareholder redemption request or to raise cash, these sales could further reduce the securities' prices and adversely affect performance of a Fund. Disposal of illiquid securities may entail registration expenses and other transaction costs that are higher than those for liquid securities.

Trading Issues Risk

Although Fund Shares are listed for trading on the Exchange, there can be no assurance that an active trading market for Fund Shares will develop or be maintained. Trading in Fund Shares on the Exchange may be halted due to market conditions or for reasons that, in the view of the Exchange, make trading in Fund Shares inadvisable. In addition, trading in Fund Shares on the Exchange is subject to trading halts caused by extraordinary market volatility pursuant to the Exchange's "circuit breaker" rules. Market makers are under no obligation to make a market in Fund Shares, and authorized participants are not obligated to submit purchase or redemption orders for Creation Units. In the event market makers cease making a market in Fund Shares or authorized participants stop submitting purchase or redemption orders for Creation Units, Fund Shares may trade at a larger premium or discount to their NAV. There can be no assurance that the requirements of the Exchange necessary to maintain the listing of a Fund will continue to be met or will remain unchanged. A Fund may have difficulty maintaining its listing on the Exchange in the event a Fund's assets are small or a Fund does not have enough shareholders.

Swap Agreements Risk

The use of swaps is a highly specialized activity which involves investment techniques, risk analyses and tax planning different from those associated with ordinary portfolio securities transactions. These transactions can result in sizeable realized and unrealized capital gains and losses relative to the gains and losses from a Fund's direct investments in securities. Transactions in swaps can involve greater risks than if a Fund had invested in the reference assets directly since, in addition to general market risks, swaps may be leveraged and are also subject to illiquidity risk, counterparty risk, credit risk and pricing risk. However, certain risks may be reduced (but not eliminated) if a Fund invests in cleared swaps. Regulators also may impose limits on an entity's or group of entities' positions in certain swaps. Because bilateral swap agreements are two-party contracts and because they may have terms of greater than seven days, these swaps may be considered to be illiquid. Moreover, a Fund bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap in the event of the default or bankruptcy of a swap counterparty. Many swaps are complex and valued subjectively. Swaps and other derivatives may also be subject to pricing or "basis" risk, which exists when the price of a particular derivative diverges from the price of corresponding cash market instruments. Under certain market conditions it may not be economically feasible to initiate a transaction or liquidate a position in time to avoid a loss or take advantage of an opportunity. If a swap transaction is particularly large or if the relevant market is illiquid, it may not be possible to initiate a transaction or liquidate a position at an advantageous time or price, which may result insignificant losses.

Valuation Risk

The Funds may hold securities or other assets that may be valued on the basis of factors other than market quotations. This may occur because the asset or security does not trade on a centralized exchange, or in times of market turmoil or reduced liquidity. There are multiple methods that can be used to value a portfolio holding when market quotations are not readily available. The value established for any portfolio holding at a point in time might differ from what would be produced using a different methodology or if it had been priced using market quotations. Portfolio holdings that are valued using techniques other than market quotations, including "fair valued" assets or securities, maybe subject to greater fluctuation in their

valuations from one day to the next than if market quotations were used. In addition, there is no assurance that a Fund could sell or close out a portfolio position for the value established for it at any time, and it is possible that a Fund would incur a loss because a portfolio position is sold or closed out at a discount to the valuation established by a Fund at that time. A Fund's ability to value investments may be impacted by technological issues or errors by pricing services or other third-party service providers.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS

TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

The general supervision of the duties performed for the Funds under the Investment Management Agreement (as defined below) is the responsibility of the Board of Trustees. There are four Trustees of the Trust, one of whom is an "interested person" (as the term is defined in the 1940 Act) (the "Interested Trustee") and three of whom are Trustees who are not officers or employees of Roundhill or any of its affiliates (each an "Independent Trustee" and collectively the "Independent Trustees"). The Trustees serve for indefinite terms until their resignation, death or removal. The Trust has not established a lead Independent Trustee position. The Trustees set broad policies for the Funds, choose the Trust's officers and hired the Funds' investment adviser. Each Trustee, except for Timothy Maloney, is an Independent Trustee. Mr. Maloney is deemed an Interested Trustee of the Trust due to his position as Chief Investment Officer and co-owner of Roundhill and Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Trust. The officers of the Trust manage its day-to-day operations, are responsible to the Board of Trustees and serve indefinite terms. The following is a list of the Trustees and executive officers of the Trust and a statement of their present positions and principal occupations during the past five years, the number of portfolios each Trustee oversees and the other directorships they have held during the past five years, if applicable.

Name, Address and Year of Birth	POSITION AND OFFICES WITH TRUST	TERM OF OFFICE AND YEAR FIRST ELECTED OR APPOINTED Interested Truste	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATIONS DURING PAST 5 YEARS	NUMBER OF PORTFOLIOS IN THE ROUNDHILL FUND COMPLEX OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE	OTHER TRUSTEESHIPS OR DIRECTORSHIPS HELD BY TRUSTEE DURING THE PAST 5 YEARS
Timothy Maloney ⁽¹⁾ c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1989	Chairman of the Board of Trustees; Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer	Indefinite term Since inception	Co-Founder (2018 – present), Chief Investment Officer (2018 – 2024), of Roundhill Financial Inc.	43	Roundhill UCITS ICAV; Roundhill Financial Inc.; AssetDash Corp.
		Independent Trust	ees		
John Pesce c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1965	Trustee	• Indefinite term • Since inception	Chief Executive Officer of TCG Group Holdings LP (1999 – present); Area President of Hub International (2021 – present)	43	Care Solace
Felix Rivera c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1963	Trustee	Indefinite term Since inception	Managing Partner of Independent Channel Advisors, LLC (2011 – present)	43	Advisors Preferred Trust; Alpha Alternative Fund; Cornerstone Investors Trust

Name, Address and Year of Birth	POSITION AND OFFICES WITH TRUST	TERM OF OFFICE AND YEAR FIRST ELECTED OR APPOINTED	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATIONS DURING PAST 5 YEARS	NUMBER OF PORTFOLIOS IN THE ROUNDHILL FUND COMPLEX OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE	OTHER TRUSTEESHIPS OR DIRECTORSHIPS HELD BY TRUSTEE DURING THE PAST 5 YEARS
Jeffrey Youngman c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1961	Trustee	Indefinite termSince inception	Managing Member of Feitlin, Youngman, Karas & Gerson, L.L.C. (1988 – present)	43	None
		Officers of the Tr	ust		
William Hershey c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1989	President	Indefinite term Since inception	Co-Founder (2018 – present), Chief Executive Officer (2018 – 2024), of Roundhill Financial Inc.	N/A	N/A
David Mazza c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1982	Vice President	Indefinite term Since inception	Chief Executive Officer (2024 – present), Chief Strategy Officer (2023 – 2024), of Roundhill Financial Inc.; Managing Director and Head of Product of Rafferty Asset Management, LLC (2018 – 2023)	N/A	N/A
Sean Poyntz c/o Roundhill Financial Inc. 154 West 14 th Street 2 nd Floor New York, NY 10011 Y.O.B.: 1992	Secretary	Indefinite termSince inception	Director of Operations (2024 – present), Vice President of Operations (2021 – 2023), of Roundhill Financial Inc.; Head of Trading & Information Security (2019 – 2021) and Trader (2017 – 2019) of Lucerne Capital Management	N/A	N/A
Adam Shoffner ⁽²⁾ c/o ACA Group Three Canal Plaza Portland, ME 04101 Y.O.B.:1979	Chief Compliance Officer and Anti- Money Laundering Officer	Indefinite term Since inception	Senior Principal Consultant and Fund Compliance Officer of ACA Group (f/k/a Foreside Financial Group), (2020 – present); Compliance Consultant of Duff & Phelps (2018 – 2020)	N/A	N/A

⁽¹⁾ Mr. Maloney is deemed an "interested person" of the Trust due to his position as Chief Investment Officer and co-owner of Roundhill Financial Inc. and Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Trust.

UNITARY BOARD LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE

It is anticipated that each Trustee will serve as a trustee of all funds in the Roundhill Fund Complex (as defined below), which is known as a "unitary" board leadership structure. Each Trustee currently serves as a trustee of the Funds and is anticipated to serve as a trustee for future funds issued by the Trust (each, a "Roundhill Fund" and collectively, the "Roundhill Fund Complex"). None of the Trustees who are not "interested persons" of the Trust, nor any of their immediate family members, have ever been a director, officer or employee of, or consultant to, Roundhill or any of its affiliates. Mr. Maloney, an Interested Trustee, serves as the Chairman of the Board of Trustees for each fund in the Roundhill Fund Complex.

⁽²⁾ Adam Shoffner is an employee of ACA Group, an affiliate of the Funds' distributor.

The same four persons serve as Trustees on the Board of Trustees and are anticipated to serve on the Board of Trustees of all other funds in the Roundhill Fund Complex. The unitary board structure was adopted for the Roundhill Fund Complex because of the efficiencies it achieves with respect to the governance and oversight of the Roundhill Funds. Each Roundhill Fund is subject to the rules and regulations of the 1940 Act (and other applicable securities laws), which means that many of the Roundhill Funds face similar issues with respect to certain of their fundamental activities, including risk management, portfolio liquidity, portfolio valuation and financial reporting. Because of the similar and often overlapping issues facing the Roundhill Funds, including among any such exchange-traded funds, the Board of Trustees of the Roundhill Funds believes that maintaining a unitary board structure promotes efficiency and consistency in the governance and oversight of all Roundhill Funds and reduces the costs, administrative burdens and possible conflicts that may result from having multiple boards. In adopting a unitary board structure, the Trustees seek to provide effective governance through establishing a board the overall composition of which, as a body, possesses the appropriate skills, diversity, independence and experience to oversee a Fund's business.

Annually, the Board of Trustees will review its governance structure and the committee structures, its performance and functions and any processes that would enhance board governance over the business of the Roundhill Funds. The Board of Trustees has determined that its leadership structure, including the unitary board and committee structure, is appropriate based on the characteristics of the funds it serves and the characteristics of the Roundhill Fund Complex as a whole.

The Board of Trustees has established two standing committees (as described below) and has delegated certain of its responsibilities to those committees. The Board of Trustees and its committees meet frequently throughout the year to oversee the activities of the Funds, review contractual arrangements with and the performance of service providers, oversee compliance with regulatory requirements and review the Funds' performance. The Independent Trustees are represented by independent legal counsel at all Board and committee meetings. Generally, the Board of Trustees acts by majority vote of the Trustees present at a meeting, assuming a quorum is present, unless otherwise required by applicable law.

The two standing committees of the Board of Trustees are the Nominating and Governance Committee and the Audit Committee.

The Nominating Committee is responsible for appointing and nominating non-interested persons to the Board of Trustees. John Pesce, Felix Rivera and Jeffrey Youngman are members of the Nominating Committee. If there is no vacancy on the Board of Trustees, the Board of Trustees will not actively seek recommendations from other parties, including shareholders. When a vacancy on the Board of Trustees occurs and nominations are sought to fill such vacancy, the Nominating Committee may seek nominations from those sources it deems appropriate in its discretion, including shareholders of a Fund. To submit a recommendation for nomination as a candidate for a position on the Board of Trustees, shareholders of a Fund should mail such recommendation to Sean Poyntz, Secretary, at the Trust's address, 154 West 14th Street, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10011. Such recommendation shall include the following information: (i) a statement in writing setting forth (A) the name, age, date of birth, business address, residence address and nationality of the person or persons to be nominated; (B) the class or series and number of all shares of a Fund owned of record or beneficially by each such person or persons, as reported to such shareholder by such nominee(s); (C) any other information regarding each such person required by paragraphs (a), (d), (e) and (f) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K or paragraph (b) of Item 22 of Rule 14a-101 (Schedule 14A) under the 1934 Act; (D) any other information regarding the person or persons to be nominated that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement or other filings required to be made in connection with solicitation of proxies for election of trustees or directors pursuant to Section 14 of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; and (E) whether such shareholder believes

any nominee is or will be an "interested person" of a Fund (as defined in the 1940 Act) and, if not an "interested person," information regarding each nominee that will be sufficient for a Fund to make such determination; and (ii) the written and signed consent of any person to be nominated to be named as a nominee and to serve as a trustee if elected. In addition, the Trustees may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information as they may reasonably require or deem necessary to determine the eligibility of such proposed nominee to serve as a Trustee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Funds' accounting and financial reporting process, the system of internal controls and audit process and for evaluating and appointing independent auditors (subject also to approval of the Board of Trustees). Messrs. Pesce, Rivera and Youngman serve on the Audit Committee.

RISK OVERSIGHT

As part of the general oversight of the Funds, the Board of Trustees is involved in the risk oversight of the Funds. The Board of Trustees has adopted and periodically reviews policies and procedures designed to address the Funds' risks. Oversight of investment and compliance risk, including, if applicable, oversight of any Sub-Adviser, is performed primarily at the Board of Trustees level in conjunction with the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO") and Anti-Money Laundering Officer.

The Board has appointed a CCO who oversees the implementation and evaluation of the Funds' compliance program. Adam Shoffner of ACA Group serves as CCO and Anti-Money Laundering Officer of the Trust. In a joint effort between the Trust and ACA Group to ensure the Trust complies with Rule 38a-1 under the 1940 Act, ACA Group has agreed to render services to the Trust by entering into a Chief Compliance Officer Services Agreement (the "CCO Services Agreement") with the Trust. Pursuant to the CCO Services Agreement, ACA Group designates, subject to the Trust's approval, one of its own employees to serve as CCO of the Trust within the meaning of Rule 38a-1. Adam Shoffner currently serves in such capacity under the terms of the CCO Services Agreement.

Oversight of other risks also occurs at the committee level. The Adviser's investment oversight group reports to the Board of Trustees at quarterly meetings regarding, among other things, Fund performance and the various drivers of such performance as well as information related to the Adviser and its operations and processes. The Board of Trustees reviews reports on the Funds' and the service providers' compliance policies and procedures at each quarterly Board of Trustee meeting and receives an annual report from the CCO regarding the operations of the Funds' and the service providers' compliance programs. In addition, the Independent Trustees meet privately each quarter with the CCO. The Audit Committee reviews with the Adviser the Funds' major financial risk exposures and the steps the Adviser has taken to monitor and control these exposures, including the Funds' risk assessment and risk management policies and guidelines. The Audit Committee also, as appropriate, reviews in a general manner the processes other Board committees have in place with respect to risk assessment and risk management. The Nominating Committee monitors all matters related to the corporate governance of the Trust.

Not all risks that may affect the Funds can be identified nor can controls be developed to eliminate or mitigate their occurrence or effects. It may not be practical or cost effective to eliminate or mitigate certain risks, the processes and controls employed to address certain risks may be limited in their effectiveness, and some risks are simply beyond the reasonable control of the Funds or the Adviser or other service providers. Moreover, it is necessary to bear certain risks (such as investment-related risks) to achieve the Funds' goals. As a result of the foregoing and other factors, the Funds' ability to manage risk is subject to substantial limitations.

BOARD DIVERSIFICATION AND TRUSTEE QUALIFICATIONS

As described above, the Nominating Committee of the Board of Trustees oversees matters related to the nomination of Trustees. The Nominating Committee seeks to establish an effective Board of Trustees with an appropriate range of skills and diversity, including, as appropriate, differences in background, professional experience, education, vocations, and other individual characteristics and traits in the aggregate. Each Trustee must meet certain basic requirements, including relevant skills and experience, time availability and, if qualifying as an Independent Trustee, independence from the Adviser, underwriters or other service providers, including any affiliates of these entities.

Listed below for each current Trustee are the experiences, qualifications and attributes that led to the conclusion, as of the date of this SAI, that each current Trustee should serve as a Trustee in light of the Trust's business and structure.

Independent Trustees. John Pesce has served on the Roundhill ETF Trust's Board of Trustees since 2023. Mr. Pesce has over 30 years of business experience in the financial services industry, including experience relating to institutional and individual financial planning, benefits services, retirement plan design and implementation, portfolio and investment advising, product marketing and financial consulting. He has served as the Chief Executive Officer of TCG Group Holdings LP since 1999 and the Area President of HUB International since 2021.

Felix Rivera is the Chair of the Roundhill Fund Complex Audit Committee and Nominating Committee and has served as a Trustee on the Roundhill ETF Trust's Board of Trustees since 2023. Mr. Rivera has over 20 years of business experience in the investment management and brokerage business and possesses a strong understanding of the regulatory framework under which investment companies must operate. He has served as the Managing Partner of Independent Channel Advisors, LLC since 2011.

Jeffrey Youngman has served on the Roundhill ETF Trust's Board of Trustees since 2023. Mr. Youngman brings significant legal expertise to the Board of Trustees. He has practiced law for over 35 years representing clients in matters relating to serious personal injuries including those concerning children who have suffered injuries as a result of harassment, intimidation and bullying at school. He has served as an attorney at Feitlin, Youngman, Karas & Gerson, L.L.C. since 1988 and is the Managing Member of the firm.

Interested Trustee. Timothy Maloney is the Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Roundhill Fund Complex. Mr. Maloney co-founded Roundhill in 2018 and served as its Chief Investment Officer until April 2024. Prior to co-founding Roundhill, Mr. Maloney worked at Wells Capital Management, where he served as a credit trader. Before his time at Wells Capital Management, Mr. Maloney worked for Morgan Stanley, advising hedge fund clients across a spectrum of strategies. He is a CFA Charterholder and a graduate of Vanderbilt University.

Each Independent Trustee is paid a fixed annual retainer of \$20,000. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is also paid an additional annual fee of \$5,000. These fees will be allocated equally among each Fund in the Roundhill Fund Complex. Trustees are also reimbursed for travel and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with all meetings.

The following table sets forth the estimated compensation to be earned by each Independent Trustee (including reimbursement for travel and out-of-pocket expenses) for services to the Funds and the estimated aggregate compensation to be paid to them for services to the Roundhill Fund Complex for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2025. The Trust has no retirement or pension plans. The officers and Trustees who

are "interested persons" as designated above serve without any compensation from the Trust. The Trust has no employees. Its officers are compensated by Roundhill.

Name of Trustee	ESTIMATED COMPENSATION FROM THE FUNDS	ESTIMATED TOTAL COMPENSATION FROM THE ROUNDHILL FUND COMPLEX
John Pesce	\$8,837	\$20,000
Felix Rivera	\$11,047	\$25,000
Jeffrey Youngman	\$8,837	\$20,000

The following table sets forth the dollar range of equity securities beneficially owned by the Interested and Independent Trustees in the Funds and all funds overseen by the Trustees in the Roundhill Fund Complex as of December 31, 2024:

TRUSTEE	DOLLAR RANGE OF EQUITY SECURITIES IN THE FUNDS	AGGREGATE DOLLAR RANGE OF EQUITY SECURITIES IN ALL REGISTERED INVESTMENT COMPANIES OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE IN THE ROUNDHILL FUND COMPLEX
Interested Trustee		
Timothy Maloney	None	None
Independent Trustees		
John Pesce	None	None
Felix Rivera	None	None
Jeffrey Youngman	None	None

As of December 31, 2024, the Independent Trustees of the Trust and immediate family members did not own beneficially or of record any class of securities of an investment adviser or principal underwriter of the Funds or any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with an investment adviser or principal underwriter of the Funds.

As of the date of this Statement of Additional Information, the officers of the Trust and Trustees, in the aggregate, owned less than 1% of the shares of the Funds.

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES

A principal shareholder is any person who owns (either of record or beneficially) 5% or more of the outstanding shares of a fund. A control person is one who owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 25% of the voting securities of a company or acknowledges the existence of control.

INVESTMENT ADVISER AND OTHER SERVICE PROVIDERS

Investment Adviser. Roundhill Financial Inc., 154 West 14th Street, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10011, serves as the investment adviser to the Funds. Roundhill is a Delaware limited liability company that is controlled by its founding members, William Hershey and Timothy Maloney. William Hershey currently serves as the President of the Trust and Timothy Maloney serves as the Chairman of the Board of Trustees, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Trust, while also continuing to serve in their roles as Co-Founders of the Adviser. The Adviser is an SEC-registered investment adviser that has provided investment advisory services to pooled investment vehicles since 2019. Roundhill discharges its responsibilities subject to the policies of the Board of Trustees. Roundhill also administers the Trust's business affairs, provides office facilities and equipment and certain clerical, bookkeeping and

administrative services, and permits any of its officers or employees to serve without compensation as Trustees or officers of the Trust if elected to such positions.

Pursuant to an investment management agreement between Roundhill and the Trust, on behalf of each Fund (the "Investment Management Agreement"), Roundhill oversees the investment of the Funds' assets by the Sub-Adviser and is responsible for paying all expenses of the Funds, excluding the fee payments under the Investment Management Agreement, interest charges on any borrowings (including net interest expenses incurred in connection with an investment in reverse repurchase agreements or futures contracts), dividends and other expenses on securities sold short, taxes (of any kind or nature, including, but not limited to, income, excise, transfer and withholding taxes), brokerage commissions and other expenses incurred in placing orders for the purchase and sale of securities and other investment instruments (including any net account or similar fees charged by futures commission merchants) or in connection with creation and redemption transactions (including without limitation any fees, charges, taxes, levies or expenses related to the purchase or sale of an amount of any currency, or the patriation or repatriation of any security or other asset, related to the execution of portfolio transactions or any creation or redemption transactions), acquired fund fees and expenses, accrued deferred tax liability, fees and expenses payable related to the provision of securities lending services, legal fees or expenses in connection with any arbitration, litigation or pending or threatened arbitration or litigation, including any settlements in connection therewith, extraordinary expenses, and distribution fees and expenses paid by the Trust under any distribution plan adopted pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act. Each Fund has agreed to pay Roundhill an annual management fee equal to 0.99% of its daily net assets.

Under the Investment Management Agreement, Roundhill shall not be liable for any loss sustained by reason of the purchase, sale or retention of any security, whether or not such purchase, sale or retention shall have been based upon the investigation and research made by any other individual, firm or corporation, if such recommendation shall have been selected with due care and in good faith, except loss resulting from willful misfeasance, bad faith, or gross negligence on the part of Roundhill in the performance of its obligations and duties, or by reason of its reckless disregard of its obligations and duties. The Investment Management Agreement is in place for the original initial two-year term, and thereafter only if approved annually by the Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. The Investment Management Agreement terminates automatically upon assignment and is terminable at any time without penalty as to a Fund by the Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Independent Trustees, or by vote of the holders of a majority of a Fund's outstanding voting securities on 60 days' written notice to Roundhill, or by Roundhill on 60 days' written notice to a Fund.

Investment Sub-Adviser. Roundhill has retained Exchanged Traded Concepts, LLC, an Oklahoma limited liability company, located at 10900 Hefner Pointe Drive, Suite 400, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73120, to act as sub-adviser to the Funds pursuant to an investment sub-advisory agreement (the "Sub-Advisory Agreement"). The Sub-Adviser is an SEC-registered investment adviser that has provided investment advisory or sub-advisory services to pooled investment vehicles since 2009, including to over 80 1940 Act-registered ETFs as of March 2025. The Sub-Adviser is majority owned by Cottonwood ETF Holdings LLC.

Pursuant to the Sub-Advisory Agreement, Roundhill has agreed to pay for the services provided by the Sub-Adviser through sub-advisory fees. Roundhill is responsible for paying the entire amount of the Sub-Adviser's fee for the Funds. The Funds do not directly pay the Sub-Adviser.

Portfolio Managers. The portfolio managers are primarily and jointly responsible for the day-to-day management of the Fund. There are currently seven portfolio managers, as follows:

- Mr. Maloney co-founded Roundhill in late 2018. He began his career at Morgan Stanley as a Foreign-Exchange and Emerging Markets salesperson. He later joined Wells Capital, where he traded investment grade bonds for a \$35 billion fixed-income portfolio. He graduated from Vanderbilt University with a degree in Economics, and a Masters of Science in Finance (MSF). Mr. Maloney is a CFA Charterholder.
- Mr. Hershey co-founded Roundhill in late 2018. He began his career at Yorkville ETF Advisors, continuing with Yorkville Capital Management after the sale of Yorkville's ETF business. During his career, he held various roles, including Head Trader for a Yorkville's long/short energy hedge fund. He graduated from Vanderbilt University with a degree in Economics. Mr. Hershey is a CFA Charterholder.
- Mr. Mazza joined Roundhill in 2023. He began his career at State Street Global Advisors and had various research, portfolio management, and product development responsibilities including leading the strategy and research team for SPDR ETFs. He later worked in leadership roles at OppenheimerFunds and Rafferty Asset Management. He graduated from the Sawyer Business School at Suffolk University with his Masters of Business Administration (MBA) in Finance in 2015 and Boston College with a degree in Political Science and Philosophy in 2005.
- Mr. Serowik joined ETC from Goldman Sachs. He began his career at Spear, Leeds & Kellogg, continuing with Goldman after its acquisition of SLK. During his career of more than 18 years at the combined companies, he held various roles, including managing the global Quant ETF Strats team and One Delta ETF Strats. He designed and developed systems for portfolio risk calculation, algorithmic ETF trading, and execution monitoring, with experience across all asset classes. He graduated from the University of Michigan with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Finance.
- Mr. Alberico joined ETC in November 2020, having spent the past 14 years in ETF trading at Goldman Sachs, Cantor Fitzgerald, and, most recently, Virtu Financial. He spent most of that time focused on the Trading and Portfolio Risk Management of ETFs exposed to international and domestic equity. He has worked on several different strategies including lead market-making and electronic trading, to customer facing institutional business developing models for block trading as well as transitional trades. Mr. Alberico graduated from St. John's University in New York with a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance.
- Mr. Tan joined ETC in May 2019 as an Associate Portfolio Manager and was promoted to Portfolio Manager in December 2020. He began his career at UBS and BBR Partners where he worked as a financial planning analyst and a portfolio strategist for over four years. During his time there, he developed comprehensive wealth management solutions focused on portfolio optimization, trust and estate planning, and tax planning. Mr. Tan graduated from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration with a concentration in Investments, a Bachelor of Arts in Economics, and a Minor in Chinese.
- Mr. Cooper joined ETC in November 2021 and currently serves as a Portfolio Manager. Previously, Mr. Cooper had roles in trade operations for Constellation Advisers from March 2017 until April 2018 and for QFR Capital Management from April 2018 until July 2020 and in the middle office derivatives group of Elliot Capital Management from September 2020 until November 2021. Prior to these roles, he spent 14 years working in various operational roles for Falcon Management Corporation, a global macro family office, gaining exposure to a variety of asset classes with a focus on operations,

accounting, and technology. Mr. Cooper graduated from Pennsylvania State University in 2002 with a Bachelor of Science in Finance and a minor in Business Law.

Portfolio Manager Compensation. Messrs. Maloney, Hershey and Mazza are compensated by Roundhill. Each receives a fixed base salary and discretionary bonus that is not tied to the performance of the Funds. The discretionary bonus is based on the overall performance of Roundhill and each individual's contribution to that performance across all duties. Messrs. Serowik, Alberico, Tan and Cooper are compensated by ETC. Each receives a fixed base salary and discretionary bonus that is not tied to the performance of the Funds.

Portfolio Manager Ownership of Fund Shares. As of the date of this Statement of Additional Information, none of the portfolio managers beneficially owned any Fund Shares.

Other Accounts Managed by the Portfolio Managers. In addition to the Funds, the portfolio managers are responsible for the day-to-day management of certain other accounts, as listed below. None of the accounts managed by the portfolio managers listed below are subject to performance based advisory fees. The information below is provided as of December 31, 2024.

		OTHER POOLED	
	Investment		
	REGISTERED INVESTMENT	VEHICLES	
	COMPANIES	NUMBER OF	OTHER ACCOUNTS
	NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS	ACCOUNTS	NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS
PORTFOLIO MANAGER	(\$ ASSETS)	(\$ ASSETS)	(\$ Assets)
Timothy Maloney	5 (\$2,092,077,635)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)
William Hershey	5 (\$2,092,077,635)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)
David Mazza	3 (\$318,522,435)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)
Andrew Serowik	74 (\$8,954,561,474)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)
Todd Alberico	74 (\$8,954,561,474)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)
Gabriel Tan	74 (\$8,954,561,474)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)
Brian Cooper	74 (\$8,954,561,474)	0 (\$0)	0 (\$0)

Conflicts of Interest. The portfolio managers have day-to-day management responsibilities with respect to other investments accounts and, accordingly, may be presented with potential or actual conflicts of interest.

The other accounts may have similar investment objectives or strategies as the Fund. A potential conflict of interest may arise as a result, whereby a portfolio manager could favor one account over another. Another potential conflict could include a portfolio manager's knowledge about the size, timing, and possible market impact of fund trades, whereby the portfolio manager could use this information to the advantage of other accounts and to the disadvantage of the Fund. However, the Adviser and Sub-Adviser has established policies and procedures to ensure that the purchase and sale of securities among all accounts the Adviser and Sub-Adviser manages are fairly and equitably allocated.

With respect to securities transactions for the Funds, the Sub-Adviser determines which broker to use to execute each transaction, consistent with its duty to seek best execution of the transaction. For buy or sell transactions considered simultaneously for the Funds and other accounts, orders are placed at the same time. The Sub-Adviser uses its best efforts to ensure that no client is treated unfairly in relation to any other client over time in the allocation of securities or the order of the execution of transactions. The Sub-Adviser generally allocates trades on the basis of assets under management so that the securities positions represent equal exposure as a percentage of total assets of each client. The Funds and client accounts are not generally invested in thinly traded or illiquid securities; therefore, conflicts in fulfilling investment opportunities are to some extent minimized. If an aggregated trade order is not substantially filled, it will generally be allocated pro rata.

Transfer Agent and Administrator. U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, doing business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services ("USBGFS" or the "Transfer Agent"), located at 615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202, serves as the Funds' transfer agent and administrator.

Pursuant to a fund servicing agreement between the Trust and USBGFS, USBGFS provides the Trust with administrative and management services (other than investment advisory services) and accounting services, including portfolio accounting services, tax accounting services, and furnishing financial reports. In this capacity, USBGFS does not have any responsibility or authority for the management of the Funds, the determination of investment policy, or for any matter pertaining to the distribution of a Fund's Shares. As compensation for the administration, accounting and management services, the Adviser pays USBGFS a fee based on a Fund's average daily net assets, subject to a minimum annual fee. USBGFS also is entitled to certain out-of-pocket expenses for the services mentioned above, including pricing expenses.

Custodian. Pursuant to a custody agreement between the Trust and U.S. Bank National Association ("U.S. Bank" or the "Custodian") (the "Custody Agreement"), U.S. Bank, located at 1555 North River Center Drive, Suite 302, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212, serves as the custodian of the Funds' assets. The Custodian holds and administers the assets in a Fund's portfolio. Pursuant to the Custody Agreement, U.S. Bank receives an annual fee from the Adviser based on the Trust's total average daily net assets, subject to a minimum annual fee, and certain settlement charges. The Custodian also is entitled to certain out-of-pocket expenses.

The net proceeds that a Fund receives pursuant to its short sale of options contracts may be retained by a Fund's prime broker(s) (or by a Fund's custodian in a special custody account), to the extent necessary to meet margin requirements, until the short position is closed out.

Securities Lending Agent. A Fund may participate in securities lending arrangements whereby a Fund lends certain of its portfolio securities to brokers, dealers and financial institutions (not individuals) to receive additional income and increase the rate of return of the portfolio. U.S. Bank (the "Securities Lending Agent") serves as securities lending agent to a Fund. The Securities Lending Agent is responsible for the implementation and administration of a Fund's securities lending program pursuant to an agreement between the Trust, on behalf of a Fund, and the Securities Lending Agent (the "Securities Lending Agreement"). The Securities Lending Agent acts as agent to a Fund to lend available securities with any person on its list of approved borrowers and (i) determines whether a loan shall be made and negotiates and establishes the terms and conditions of the loan with the borrower; (ii) ensures that all substitute interest, dividends, and other distributions paid with respect to loan securities is credited to a Fund's relevant account on the date such amounts are delivered by the borrower to the Securities Lending Agent; (iii) receives and holds, on a Fund's behalf, collateral from borrowers to secure obligations of borrowers with respect to any loan of available securities; (iv) marks loaned securities and collateral to their market value each business day based upon the market value of the loaned securities and collateral at the close of business employing the most recently available pricing information and receives and delivers collateral to maintain the value of the collateral at no less than 100% of the market value of the loaned securities; (v) at the termination of a loan, returns the collateral to the borrower upon the return of the loaned securities to the Securities Lending Agent; (vi) invests cash collateral in accordance with the applicable Securities Lending Agreement; and (viii) maintains such records as are reasonably necessary to account for loans that are made and the income derived therefrom and makes available to a Fund a monthly statement describing the loans outstanding, including an accounting of all securities lending transactions.

Distributor. The Trust and Foreside Fund Services, LLC ("Foreside" or the "Distributor") are parties to a distribution agreement (the "Distribution Agreement"), whereby the Distributor acts as principal underwriter for the Trust and distributes Fund Shares. Fund Shares are continuously offered for sale by the

Distributor only in Creation Units. The Distributor will not distribute Fund Shares in amounts less than a Creation Unit and does not maintain a secondary market in Fund Shares. The principal business address of the Distributor is Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, Maine 04101.

Under the Distribution Agreement, the Distributor, as agent for the Trust, will receive orders for the purchase and redemption of Creation Units, provided that any subscriptions and orders will not be binding on the Trust until accepted by the Trust. The Distributor is a broker-dealer registered under the Exchange Act and a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA").

The Distributor also may enter into agreements with securities dealers ("Soliciting Dealers") who will solicit purchases of Creation Units of Fund Shares. Such Soliciting Dealers also may be Authorized Participants (as discussed in the section entitled "Creation and Redemption of Creation Units") or DTC participants (as defined below).

The Distribution Agreement will continue for two years from its effective date and is renewable annually thereafter. The continuance of the Distribution Agreement must be specifically approved at least annually (i) by the vote of the Trustees or by a vote of the shareholders of a Fund and (ii) by the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the operations of the Distribution Agreement or any related agreement, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. The Distribution Agreement is terminable without penalty by the Trust on 60 days' written notice when authorized either by majority vote of its outstanding voting Fund Shares or by a vote of a majority of its Board (including a majority of the Independent Trustees), or by the Distributor on 60 days' written notice, and will automatically terminate in the event of its assignment. The Distribution Agreement provides that in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence on the part of the Distributor, or reckless disregard by it of its obligations thereunder, the Distributor shall not be liable for any action or failure to act in accordance with its duties thereunder.

Since the inception of each Fund, there has been no underwriting commissions with respect to the sale of Fund Shares, and the Distributor did not receive compensation on redemptions for a Fund for that period.

Intermediary Compensation. The Adviser, the Sub-Adviser, or their affiliates, out of their own resources and not out of Fund assets (*i.e.*, without additional cost to a Fund or its shareholders), may pay certain broker dealers, banks and other financial intermediaries ("Intermediaries") for certain activities related to a Fund, including participation in activities that are designed to make Intermediaries more knowledgeable about exchange traded products, including a Fund, or for other activities, such as marketing and educational training or support. These arrangements are not financed by a Fund and, thus, do not result in increased a Fund's expenses. They are not reflected in the fees and expenses listed in the fees and expenses sections of a Fund's Prospectus and they do not change the price paid by investors for the purchase of Fund Shares or the amount received by a shareholder as proceeds from the redemption of Fund Shares.

Such compensation may be paid to Intermediaries that provide services to a Fund, including marketing and education support (such as through conferences, webinars and printed communications). The Adviser and the Sub-Adviser will periodically assess the advisability of continuing to make these payments. Payments to an Intermediary may be significant to the Intermediary, and amounts that Intermediaries pay to your adviser, broker or other investment professional, if any, also may be significant to such adviser, broker or investment professional. Because an Intermediary may make decisions about what investment options it will make available or recommend, and what services to provide in connection with various products, based on payments it receives or is eligible to receive, such payments create conflicts of interest between the Intermediary and its clients. For example, these financial incentives may cause the Intermediary to recommend a Fund rather than other investments. The same conflict of interest exists with respect to your

financial adviser, broker or investment professional if he or she receives similar payments from his or her Intermediary firm.

Intermediary information is current only as of the date of this SAI. Please contact your adviser, broker, or other investment professional for more information regarding any payments his or her Intermediary firm may receive. Any payments made by the Adviser, the Sub-Adviser, or their affiliates to an Intermediary may create the incentive for an Intermediary to encourage customers to buy Fund Shares.

Distribution and Service Plan. The Board has adopted a Distribution and Service Plan (the "Plan") in accordance with the provisions of Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act, which regulates circumstances under which an investment company may directly or indirectly bear expenses relating to the distribution of its shares. No payments pursuant to the Plan are expected to be made during the twelve (12) month period from the date of this SAI. Rule 12b-1 fees to be paid by a Fund under the Plan may only be imposed after approval by the Board.

Continuance of the Plan must be approved annually by a majority of the Trustees of the Trust and by a majority of the Trustees who are not interested persons (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the Trust and have no direct or indirect financial interest in the Plan or in any agreements related to the Plan ("Qualified Trustees"). The Plan requires that quarterly written reports of amounts spent under the Plan and the purposes of such expenditures be furnished to and reviewed by the Trustees. The Plan may not be amended to increase materially the amount that may be spent thereunder without approval by a majority of the outstanding Fund Shares. All material amendments of the Plan will require approval by a majority of the Trustees of the Trust and of the Qualified Trustees.

The Plan provides that a Fund pays the Distributor an annual fee of up to a maximum of 0.25% of the average daily net assets of Fund Shares. Under the Plan, the Distributor may make payments pursuant to written agreements to financial institutions and intermediaries such as banks, savings and loan associations and insurance companies including, without limit, investment counselors, broker-dealers and the Distributor's affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively, "Agents") as compensation for services and reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with distribution assistance. The Plan is characterized as a compensation plan since the distribution fee will be paid to the Distributor without regard to the distribution expenses incurred by the Distributor or the amount of payments made to other financial institutions and intermediaries. The Trust intends to operate the Plan in accordance with its terms and with FINRA's rules concerning sales charges.

Under the Plan, subject to the limitations of applicable law and regulations, each Fund is authorized to compensate the Distributor up to the maximum amount to finance any activity primarily intended to result in the sale of Creation Units of a Fund or for providing or arranging for others to provide shareholder services and for the maintenance of shareholder accounts. Such activities may include, but are not limited to: (i) delivering copies of a Fund's then current reports, prospectuses, notices, and similar materials, to prospective purchasers of Creation Units; (ii) marketing and promotional services, including advertising; (iii) paying the costs of and compensating others, including Authorized Participants with whom the Distributor has entered into written Authorized Participant Agreements, for performing shareholder servicing on behalf of a Fund; (iv) compensating certain Authorized Participants for providing assistance in distributing the Creation Units of a Fund, including the travel and communication expenses and salaries and/or commissions of sales personnel in connection with the distribution of the Creation Units of a Fund; (v) payments to financial institutions and intermediaries such as banks, savings and loan associations, insurance companies and investment counselors, broker-dealers, mutual fund supermarkets and the affiliates and subsidiaries of the Trust's service providers as compensation for services or reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with distribution assistance; (vi) facilitating communications with

beneficial owners of Fund Shares, including the cost of providing (or paying others to provide) services to beneficial owners of Fund Shares, including, but not limited to, assistance in answering inquiries related to shareholder accounts; and (vii) such other services and obligations as are set forth in the Distribution Agreement.

Aggregations. Fund Shares in amounts less than Creation Units are not distributed by the Distributor. The Distributor will deliver the Prospectus and, upon request, this SAI to Authorized Participants purchasing Creation Units and will maintain records of both orders placed with it and confirmations of acceptance furnished by it. The Distributor is a broker-dealer registered under the 1934 Act and a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA").

The Distribution Agreement provides that it may be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty, on at least 60 days' written notice by the Trust to the Distributor (i) by vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees; or (ii) by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities (as defined in the 1940 Act) of a Fund. The Distribution Agreement will terminate automatically in the event of its assignment (as defined in the 1940 Act).

The Distributor may also enter into agreements with participants that utilize the facilities of the Depository Trust Company (the "DTC Participants"), which have international, operational, capabilities and place orders for Creation Units of a Fund's Shares. Participating Parties (as defined in "Procedures for Creation of Creation Units" below) shall be DTC Participants (as defined in "DTC Acts as Securities Depository for Fund Shares" below).

BROKERAGE ALLOCATIONS

The Sub-Adviser is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities for a Fund and for the placement of a Fund's securities business, the negotiation of the commissions to be paid on brokered transactions, the prices for principal trades in securities, and the allocation of portfolio brokerage and principal business.

The Sub-Adviser owes a fiduciary duty to its clients (including a Fund) to seek to provide best execution on trades effected. In selecting a broker/dealer for each specific transaction, the Sub-Adviser chooses the broker/dealer deemed most capable of providing the services necessary to obtain the most favorable execution. "Best execution" is generally understood to mean the most favorable cost or net proceeds reasonably obtainable under the circumstances. The full range of brokerage services applicable to a particular transaction may be considered when making this judgment, which may include, but is not limited to: liquidity, price, commission, timing, aggregated trades, capable floor brokers or traders, competent block trading coverage, ability to position, capital strength and stability, reliable and accurate communications and settlement processing, use of automation, knowledge of other buyers or sellers, arbitrage skills, administrative ability, underwriting and provision of information on a particular security or market in which the transaction is to occur. The specific criteria will vary depending upon the nature of the transaction, the market in which it is executed, and the extent to which it is possible to select from among multiple broker/dealers. The Sub-Adviser also will use electronic crossing networks ("ECNs") when appropriate.

Subject to the foregoing policies, brokers or dealers selected to execute a Fund's portfolio transactions may include a Fund's Authorized Participants or their affiliates. An Authorized Participant or its affiliates may be selected to execute a Fund's portfolio transactions in conjunction with an all-cash creation unit order or an order including "cash-in-lieu," so long as such selection is in keeping with the foregoing policies. A Fund may determine to not charge a variable fee on certain orders when the Sub-Adviser has determined that doing so is in the best interests of a Fund's shareholders, e.g., for creation orders that facilitate the

rebalance of a Fund's portfolio in a more tax efficient manner than could be achieved without such order, even if the decision to not charge a variable fee could be viewed as benefiting the Authorized Participant or its affiliate selected to execute a Fund's portfolio transactions in connection with such orders.

The Sub-Adviser may use a Fund's assets for, or participate in, third-party soft dollar arrangements, in addition to receiving proprietary research from various full-service brokers, the cost of which is bundled with the cost of the broker's execution services. The Sub-Adviser does not "pay up" for the value of any such proprietary research. Section 28(e) of the Exchange Act permits the Sub-Adviser, under certain circumstances, to cause a Fund to pay a broker or dealer a commission for effecting a transaction in excess of the amount of commission another broker or dealer would have charged for effecting the transaction in recognition of the value of brokerage and research services provided by the broker or dealer. The Sub-Adviser may receive a variety of research services and information on many topics, which it can use in connection with its management responsibilities with respect to the various accounts over which it exercises investment discretion or otherwise provides investment advice. The research services may include qualifying order management systems, portfolio attribution and monitoring services and computer software and access charges which are directly related to investment research. Accordingly, a Fund may pay a broker commission higher than the lowest available in recognition of the broker's provision of such services to the Sub-Adviser, but only if the Sub-Adviser determines the total commission (including the soft dollar benefit) is comparable to the best commission rate that could be expected to be received from other brokers. The amount of soft dollar benefits received depends on the amount of brokerage transactions effected with the brokers. A conflict of interest exists because there is an incentive to: (i) cause clients to pay a higher commission than the firm might otherwise be able to negotiate; (ii) cause clients to engage in more securities transactions than would otherwise be optimal; and (iii) only recommend brokers that provide soft dollar benefits.

The Sub-Adviser faces a potential conflict of interest when it uses client trades to obtain brokerage or research services. This conflict exists because the Sub-Adviser can use the brokerage or research services to manage client accounts without paying cash for such services, which reduces the Sub-Adviser's expenses to the extent that the Sub-Adviser would have purchased such products had they not been provided by brokers. Section 28(e) permits the Sub-Adviser to use brokerage or research services for the benefit of any account it manages. Certain accounts managed by the Sub-Adviser may generate soft dollars used to purchase brokerage or research services that ultimately benefit other accounts managed by the Sub-Adviser, effectively cross subsidizing the other accounts managed by the Sub-Adviser that benefit directly from the product. The Sub-Adviser may not necessarily use all of the brokerage or research services in connection with managing a Fund whose trades generated the soft dollars used to purchase such products.

If purchases or sales of portfolio securities of a Fund and one or more other investment companies or clients supervised by the Sub-Adviser are considered at or about the same time, transactions in such securities are allocated among the several investment companies and clients in a manner deemed equitable and consistent with its fiduciary obligations to all by the Sub-Adviser. In some cases, this procedure could have a detrimental effect on the price or volume of the security so far as a Fund is concerned. However, in other cases, it is possible that the ability to participate in volume transactions and to negotiate lower brokerage commissions will be beneficial to a Fund. The primary consideration is prompt execution of orders at the most favorable net price.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Book Entry Only System. The following information supplements and should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus.

DTC Acts as Securities Depository for Fund Shares. Fund Shares are represented by securities registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") or its nominee, Cede & Co., and deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC.

DTC, a limited-purpose trust company, was created to hold securities of its participants (the "DTC Participants") and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among the DTC Participants in such securities through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of the DTC Participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities, certificates. DTC Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations, some of whom (and/or their representatives) own DTC. More specifically, DTC is owned by a number of its DTC Participants and by the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") and FINRA. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a DTC Participant, either directly or indirectly (the "Indirect Participants").

Beneficial ownership of Fund Shares is limited to DTC Participants, Indirect Participants and persons holding interests through DTC Participants and Indirect Participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in Fund Shares (owners of such beneficial interests are referred to herein as "Beneficial Owners") is shown on, and the transfer of ownership is effected only through, records maintained by DTC (with respect to DTC Participants) and on the records of DTC Participants (with respect to Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners that are not DTC Participants). Beneficial Owners will receive from or through the DTC Participant a written confirmation relating to their purchase and sale of Fund Shares.

Conveyance of all notices, statements and other communications to Beneficial Owners is effected as follows. Pursuant to a letter agreement between DTC and the Trust, DTC is required to make available to the Trust upon request and for a fee to be charged to the Trust a listing of Fund Shares held by each DTC Participant. The Trust shall inquire of each such DTC Participant as to the number of Beneficial Owners holding Fund Shares, directly or indirectly, through such DTC Participant. The Trust shall provide each such DTC Participant with copies of such notice, statement or other communication, in such form, number and at such place as such DTC Participant may reasonably request, in order that such notice, statement or communication may be transmitted by such DTC Participant, directly or indirectly, to such Beneficial Owners. In addition, the Trust shall pay to each such DTC Participants a fair and reasonable amount as reimbursement for the expenses attendant to such transmittal, all subject to applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.

Fund distributions shall be made to DTC or its nominee, as the registered holder of all Fund Shares. DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any such distributions, shall immediately credit DTC Participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in Fund Shares as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. Payments by DTC Participants to Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners of Fund Shares held through such DTC Participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in a "street name," and will be the responsibility of such DTC Participants.

The Trust has no responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or notices to Beneficial Owners, or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in such Fund Shares, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests, or for any other aspect of the relationship between DTC and the DTC Participants or the relationship between such DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners owning through such DTC Participants.

DTC may decide to discontinue providing its service with respect to shares at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Trust and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law. Under such circumstances, the Trust shall take action to find a replacement for DTC to perform its functions at a comparable cost.

Policy Regarding Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings. The Trust has adopted a policy regarding the disclosure of information about a Fund's portfolio holdings. The Board of Trustees must approve all material amendments to this policy. A Fund's portfolio holdings are publicly disseminated each day a Fund is open for business through financial reporting and news services, including publicly accessible Internet websites. In addition, a basket composition file, which includes the security names and share quantities to deliver in exchange for Fund Shares, together with estimates and actual cash components, is publicly disseminated each day the NYSE is open for trading via the National Securities Clearing Corporation ("NSCC"). The basket represents one Creation Unit of a Fund. A Fund's portfolio holdings are also available on its website at https://www.roundhillinvestments.com/etf. The Trust, Adviser, Sub-Adviser and the Distributor will not disseminate non-public information concerning the Trust.

Quarterly Portfolio Schedule. The Trust is required to disclose, on a quarterly basis, the complete schedule of a Fund's portfolio holdings with the SEC on Form N-PORT. The Trust discloses the complete schedule of a Fund's portfolio holdings on Form N-CSR after its second and fourth quarters. Form N-PORT and Form N-CSR for the Trust is available on the SEC's website at https://www.sec.gov. A Fund's Form N-PORT and Form N-CSR may also be reviewed and copied at the SEC's Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. and information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330. The Trust's Form N-PORT and Form N-CSR are available without charge, upon request, by calling (855) 561-5728 or by writing to Roundhill ETF Trust, 154 West 14th Street, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10011.

Codes of Ethics. In order to mitigate the possibility that a Fund will be adversely affected by personal trading, the Trust, the Adviser, the Sub-Adviser and the Distributor have adopted Codes of Ethics under Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act. These Codes of Ethics contain policies restricting securities trading in personal accounts access persons, Trustees and others who normally come into possession of information on portfolio transactions. Personnel subject to the Codes of Ethics may invest in securities that may be purchased or held by a Fund; however, the Codes of Ethics require that each transaction in such securities be reviewed by the Compliance Department. These Codes of Ethics are on public file with, and are available from, the SEC.

PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Trust has adopted a proxy voting policy that seeks to ensure that proxies for securities held by a Fund are voted consistently with the best interests of such Fund.

The Board has delegated to the Adviser the proxy voting responsibilities for a Fund and has directed the Adviser to vote proxies consistent with a Fund's best interests. The Adviser has delegated to the Sub-Adviser the day-to-day proxy voting responsibilities of a Fund and has directed the Sub-Adviser to vote proxies consistent with a Fund's best interests. The Sub-Adviser has engaged the services of Institutional Shareholder Services Inc. ("ISS") to make recommendations to the Sub-Adviser on the voting of proxies relating to securities held by a Fund. The Sub-Adviser has adopted the ISS Proxy Voting Guidelines. While these guidelines are not intended to be all-inclusive, they do provide guidance on the Sub-Adviser's general voting policies. The Sub-Adviser's use of the ISS Proxy Voting Guidelines is not intended to constrain the Sub-Adviser's consideration of any proxy proposal, and there may be times when the Sub-Adviser deviates

from the ISS Proxy Voting Guidelines. The ISS Proxy Voting Guidelines are subject to change at the discretion of ISS and may be found at issgovernance.com.

Information regarding how a Fund voted proxies (if any) relating to portfolio securities during the most recent 12-month period ended June 30 is available upon request and without charge on its website at https://www.roundhillinvestments.com/etf, by calling (855) 561-5728 or by accessing the SEC's website at https://www.sec.gov.

CREATION AND REDEMPTION OF CREATION UNITS

General. ETFs, such as the Funds, generally issue and redeem their shares in primary market transactions through a creation and redemption mechanism and do not sell or redeem individual shares. Instead, financial entities, known as "Authorized Participants," have contractual arrangements with an ETF or one of the ETF's service providers to purchase and redeem ETF shares directly with the ETF in large blocks of shares known as "Creation Units." Prior to start of trading on each business day, an ETF publishes through the NSCC the "basket" of securities, cash or other assets that it will accept in exchange for a Creation Unit of the ETF's shares. An Authorized Participant that wishes to effectuate a creation of an ETF's shares deposits with the ETF the "basket" of securities, cash or other assets identified by the ETF that day, and then receives the Creation Unit of the ETF's shares in return for those assets. After purchasing a Creation Unit, the Authorized Participant may continue to hold the ETF's shares or sell them in the secondary market. The redemption process is the reverse of the purchase process: the authorized participant redeems a Creation Unit of ETF shares for a basket of securities, cash or other assets. The combination of the creation and redemption process with secondary market trading in ETF shares and underlying securities provides arbitrage opportunities that are designed to help keep the market price of ETF shares at or close to the NAV per share of the ETF.

Each Authorized Participant is a member or participant of a clearing agency registered with the SEC that has a written agreement with a Fund or one of its service providers that allows the Authorized Participant to place orders for the purchase or redemption of Creation Units (a "Participant Agreement"). Orders to purchase Creation Units must be delivered through an Authorized Participant that has executed a Participant Agreement and must comply with the applicable provisions of such Participant Agreement. Investors wishing to purchase or sell shares generally do so on an exchange. Institutional investors other than Authorized Participants are responsible for making arrangements for a redemption request to be made through an Authorized Participant.

A "Business Day" is generally any day on which the NYSE, the Exchange and the Trust are open for business. As of the date of this SAI, the NYSE observes the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. The Business Day on which an order to purchase or redeem Creation Units is received in proper form is referred to as the "Transmittal Date."

Basket Composition and Custom Baskets. Rule 6c-11(c)(3) under of the 1940 Act requires an ETF relying on the exemptions offered by Rule 6c-11 to adopt and implement written policies and procedures governing the construction of baskets and the process that the ETF will use for the acceptance of baskets. In general, in connection with the construction and acceptance of baskets, the Adviser may consider various factors, including, but not limited to: (1) whether the securities, assets and other positions comprising a basket are consistent with the ETF's investment objective(s), policies and disclosure; (2) whether the securities, assets

and other positions can legally and readily be acquired, transferred and held by the ETF and/or Authorized Participant(s), as applicable; (3) whether to utilize cash, either in lieu of securities or other instruments or as a cash balancing amount; and (4) in the case of an ETF that tracks an index, whether the securities, assets and other positions aid index tracking.

Each Fund may utilize a pro-rata basket or a custom basket in reliance on Rule 6c-11. A "pro-rata basket" is a basket that is a pro rata representation of the ETF's portfolio holdings, except for minor deviations when it is not operationally feasible to include a particular instrument within the basket, except to the extent that a Fund utilized different baskets in transactions on the same Business Day.

Rule 6c-11 defines "custom baskets" to include two categories of baskets. First, a basket containing a non-representative selection of the ETF's portfolio holdings would constitute a custom basket. These types of custom baskets include, but are not limited to, baskets that do not reflect: (i) a pro rata representation of a Fund's portfolio holdings; (ii) a representative sampling of an ETF's portfolio holdings; or (iii) changes due to a rebalancing or reconstitution of an ETF's securities market index, if applicable. Second, if different baskets are used in transactions on the same Business Day, each basket after the initial basket would constitute a custom basket. For example, if an ETF exchanges a basket with either the same or another Authorized Participant that reflects a representative sampling that differs from the initial basket, that basket (and any such subsequent baskets) would be a custom basket. Similarly, if an ETF substitutes cash in lieu of a portion of basket assets for a single Authorized Participant, that basket would be a custom basket.

Under a variety of circumstances, an ETF and its shareholders may benefit from the flexibility afforded by custom baskets. In general terms, the use of custom baskets may reduce costs, increase efficiency and improve trading. Because utilizing custom baskets provides a way for an ETF to add, remove and re-weight portfolio securities without transacting in the market, it may help the ETF to avoid transaction costs and adverse tax consequences. Rule 6c-11 provides an ETF with flexibility to use "custom baskets" if the ETF has adopted written policies and procedures that: (1) set forth detailed parameters for the construction and acceptance of custom baskets that are in the best interests of the ETF and its shareholders, including the process for any revisions to, or deviations from, those parameters; and (2) specify the titles or roles of employees of the ETF's investment adviser who are required to review each custom basket for compliance with those parameters.

The use of baskets that do not correspond to pro rata to an ETF's portfolio holdings has historically created concern that an Authorized Participant could take advantage of its relationship with an ETF and pressure the ETF to construct a basket that favors an Authorized Participant to the detriment of the ETF's shareholders. For example, because ETFs rely on Authorized Participants to maintain the secondary market by promoting an effective arbitrage mechanism, an Authorized Participant holding less liquid or less desirable securities potentially could pressure an ETF into accepting those securities in its basket in exchange for liquid ETF shares (*i.e.*, dumping). An Authorized Participant also could pressure the ETF into including in its basket certain desirable securities in exchange for ETF shares tendered for redemption (*i.e.*, cherry-picking). In either case, the ETF's other investors would be disadvantaged and would be left holding shares of an ETF with a less liquid or less desirable portfolio of securities. The Adviser has adopted policies and procedures designed to mitigate these concerns but there is ultimately no guarantee that such policies and procedures will be effective.

Basket Dissemination. Basket files are published for consumption through the NSCC, a subsidiary of Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation, and can be utilized for pricing, creations, redemptions,

rebalancing and custom scenarios. In most instances, pro rata baskets are calculated and supplied by the ETF's custodial bank based on ETF holdings, whereas non-pro-rata, custom and forward-looking pro rata baskets are calculated by the Adviser and disseminated by the ETF's custodial bank through the NSCC process.

Placement of Creation or Redemption Orders. All orders to purchase or redeem Creation Units are to be governed according to the applicable Participant Agreement that each Authorized Participant has executed. In general, all orders to purchase or redeem Creation Units must be received by the transfer agent in the proper form required by the Participant Agreement no later than the closing time of the regular trading session of the NYSE (ordinarily 4:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time) on each day the NYSE is open for business (the "Closing Time") in order for the purchase or redemption of Creation Units to be effected based on the NAV of Fund Shares as next determined on such date after receipt of the order in proper form. However, at its discretion, a Fund may require an Authorized Participant to submit orders to purchase or redeem Creation Units be placed earlier in the day (such as instances where an applicable market for a security comprising a creation or redemption basket closes earlier than usual).

Delivery of Redemption Proceeds. Deliveries of securities to Authorized Participants in connection with redemption orders are generally expected to be made within one Business Day. Due to the schedule of holidays in certain countries, however, the delivery of in-kind redemption proceeds for a Fund may take longer than one Business Day after the day on which the redemption request is received in proper form. Section 22(e) of the 1940 Act generally prohibits a registered open-end management investment company from postponing the date of satisfaction of redemption requests for more than seven days after the tender of a security for redemption. This prohibition can cause operational difficulties for ETFs that hold foreign investments and exchange in-kind baskets for Creation Units. For example, local market delivery cycles for transferring foreign investments to redeeming investors, together with local market holiday schedules, can sometimes require a delivery process in excess of seven days. However, Rule 6c-11 grants relief from Section 22(e) to permit an ETF to delay satisfaction of a redemption request for more than seven days if a local market holiday, or series of consecutive holidays, or the extended delivery cycles for transferring foreign investments to redeeming Authorized Participants, or the combination thereof prevents timely delivery of the foreign investment included in the ETF's basket. Under this exemption, an ETF must deliver foreign investments as soon as practicable, but in no event later than 15 days after the tender to the ETF. The exemption therefore will permit a delay only to the extent that additional time for settlement is actually required, when a local market holiday, or series of consecutive holidays, or the extended delivery cycles for transferring foreign investments to redeeming authorized participants prevents timely delivery of the foreign investment included in the ETF's basket. If a foreign investment settles in less than 15 days, Rule 6c-11 requires an ETF to deliver it pursuant to the standard settlement time of the local market where the investment trades. Rule 6c-11 defines "foreign investment" as any security, asset or other position of the ETF issued by a foreign issuer (as defined by Rule 3b-4 under the 1934 Act), and that is traded on a trading market outside of the United States. This definition is not limited to "foreign securities," but also includes other investments that may not be considered securities. Although these other investments may not be securities, they may present the same challenges for timely settlement as foreign securities if they are transferred in kind.

Creation Transaction Fees. A Fund imposes fees in connection with the purchase of Creation Units. These fees may vary based upon various facts-based circumstances, including, but not limited to, the composition of the securities included in the Creation Unit or the countries in which the transactions are settled. The price for each Creation Unit will equal the daily NAV per Fund Shares times the number of Fund Shares in a Creation Unit, plus the fees described above and, if applicable, any operational processing and brokerage

costs, transfer fees, stamp taxes and part or all of the spread between the expected bid and offer side of the market related to the securities comprising the creation basket.

Redemption Transaction Fees. A Fund also imposes fees in connection with the redemption of Creation Units. These fees may vary based upon various facts-based circumstances, including, but not limited to, the composition of the securities included in the Creation Unit or the countries in which the transactions are settled. The price received for each Creation Unit will equal the daily NAV per Fund Share times the number of Fund Shares in a Creation Unit, minus the fees described above and, if applicable, any operational processing and brokerage costs, transfer fees, stamp taxes and part or all of the spread between the expected bid and offer side of the market related to the securities comprising the redemption basket. Investors who use the services of a broker or other such intermediary in addition to an Authorized Participant to effect a redemption of a Creation Unit may also be assessed an amount to cover the cost of such services. The redemption fee charged by a Fund will comply with Rule 22c-2 of the 1940 Act which limits redemption fees to no more than 2% of the value of Fund Shares redeemed.

Suspension of Creations. The SEC has stated its position that an ETF generally may suspend the issuance of Creation Units only for a limited time and only due to extraordinary circumstances, such as when the markets on which the ETF's portfolio holdings are traded are closed for a limited period of time. The SEC has also stated that an ETF could not set transaction fees so high as to effectively suspend the issuance of Creation Units. Circumstances in which a Fund may suspend creations include, but are not limited to: (i) the order is not in proper form; (ii) the purchaser or group of related purchasers, upon obtaining the Creation Units of such Fund Shares ordered, would own 80% or more of the currently outstanding Fund Shares of a Fund; (iii) the required consideration is not delivered; (iv) the acceptance of the basket would, in the opinion of such Fund, be unlawful; or (v) there exist circumstances outside the control of such Fund that make it impossible to process purchases of Creation Units for all practical purposes. Examples of such circumstances include: acts of God or public service or utility problems such as fires, floods, extreme weather conditions and power outages resulting in telephone, telecopy and computer failures; market conditions or activities causing trading halts; systems failures involving computer or other information systems affecting a Fund, the Adviser, the Distributor, DTC, NSCC, the transfer agent, the custodian, any sub-custodian or any other participant in the purchase process; and similar extraordinary events. A Fund reserves the right to reject a creation order transmitted to it provided that such action does not result in a suspension of sales of creation units in contravention of 6c-11 and the SEC's positions thereunder. The Transfer Agent shall notify a prospective creator of a Creation Unit and/or the Authorized Participant acting on behalf of such prospective creator of the rejection of the order of such person. The Trust, a Fund, the transfer agent, the custodian, any sub-custodian and the Distributor are under no duty, however, to give notification of any defects or irregularities in the delivery of baskets, nor shall any of them incur any liability for the failure to give any such notification.

Suspension of Redemptions. An ETF may suspend the redemption of Creation Units only in accordance with Section 22(e) of the 1940 Act. Section 22(e) stipulates that no registered investment company shall suspend the right of redemption, or postpone the date of payment or satisfaction upon redemption of any redeemable security in accordance with its terms for more than seven days after the tender of such security to the company or its agent designated for that purpose for redemption, except (1) for any period (A) during which the NYSE is closed other than customary week-end and holiday closings or (B) during which trading on the NYSE is restricted; (2) for any period during which an emergency exists as a result of which (A) disposal by the investment company of securities owned by it is not reasonably practicable or (B) it is not reasonably practicable for such company fairly to determine the value of its net assets; or (3) for such other periods as the SEC may by order permit for the protection of security holders of the investment company.

Exceptions to Use of Creation Units. Under Rule 6c-11 of the 1940 Act, ETFs are permitted to sell or redeem individual shares on the day of consummation of a reorganization, merger, conversion, or liquidation. In these limited circumstances, an ETF may need to issue or redeem individual shares and may need to transact without utilizing Authorized Participants.

FEDERAL TAX MATTERS

This section summarizes some of the main U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning shares of a Fund. This section is current as of the date of this SAI. Tax laws and interpretations change frequently, and these summaries do not describe all of the tax consequences to all taxpayers. For example, these summaries generally do not describe your situation if you are a corporation, a non-U.S. person, a broker-dealer, or other investor with special circumstances. In addition, this section does not describe your state, local or foreign tax consequences.

This federal income tax summary is based in part on the advice of counsel to a Fund. The Internal Revenue Service could disagree with any conclusions set forth in this section. In addition, our counsel may not have been asked to review, and may not have reached a conclusion with respect to the federal income tax treatment of the assets to be deposited in a Fund. This may not be sufficient for prospective investors to use for the purpose of avoiding penalties under federal tax law.

As with any investment, prospective investors should seek advice based on their individual circumstances from their own tax advisor.

Each Fund intends to qualify annually and to elect to be treated as a regulated investment company under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

To qualify for the favorable U.S. federal income tax treatment generally accorded to regulated investment companies, a Fund must, among other things, (i) derive in each taxable year at least 90% of its gross income from dividends, interest, payments with respect to securities loans and gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies or other income derived with respect to its business of investing in such stock, securities or currencies, or net income derived from interests in certain publicly traded partnerships; (ii) diversify its holdings so that, at the end of each quarter of the taxable year, (a) at least 50% of the market value of a Fund's assets is represented by cash and cash items (including receivables), U.S. government securities, the securities of other regulated investment companies and other securities, with such other securities of any one issuer generally limited for the purposes of this calculation to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of a Fund's total assets and not greater than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (b) not more than 25% of the value of its total assets is invested in the securities (other than U.S. government securities or the securities of other regulated investment companies) of any one issuer, or two or more issuers which a Fund controls which are engaged in the same, similar or related trades or businesses, or the securities of one or more of certain publicly traded partnerships; and (iii) distribute at least 90% of its investment company taxable income (which includes, among other items, dividends, interest and net short-term capital gains in excess of net long-term capital losses) and at least 90% of its net tax-exempt interest income each taxable year. There are certain exceptions for failure to qualify if the failure is for reasonable cause or is de minimis, and certain corrective action is taken and certain tax payments are made by a Fund.

The authority with regard to swaps entered into by regulated investment companies is unclear both as to the qualification under the income test and the identification of the issuer under the diversification test. Each Fund intends to take the position that because the swaps held by the Fund reference securities that the income on the swaps are "other income" from the Fund's business of investing in stocks and securities. In addition, each Fund intends to manage its investments in the swaps so that neither the exposure to issuer of the referenced security nor the exposure to any one counterparty of the swaps will exceed 25% of the gross value of the Fund's portfolio at the end of any quarter.

As a regulated investment company, a Fund generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its investment company taxable income (as that term is defined in the Code, but without regard to the deduction for dividends paid) and net capital gain (the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), if any, that it distributes to shareholders. Each Fund intends to distribute to its shareholders, at least annually, substantially all of its investment company taxable income and net capital gain. If a Fund retains any net capital gain or investment company taxable income, it will generally be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates on the amount retained. In addition, amounts not distributed on a timely basis in accordance with a calendar year distribution requirement are subject to a nondeductible 4% excise tax unless, generally, a Fund distributes during each calendar year an amount equal to the sum of (1) at least 98% of its ordinary income (not taking into account any capital gains or losses) for the calendar year, (2) at least 98.2% of its capital gains in excess of its capital losses (adjusted for certain ordinary losses) for the one-year period ending October 31 of the calendar year, and (3) any ordinary income and capital gains for previous years that were not distributed during those years. In order to prevent application of the excise tax, each Fund intends to make its distributions in accordance with the calendar year distribution requirement. A distribution will be treated as paid on December 31 of the current calendar year if it is declared by a Fund in October, November or December with a record date in such a month and paid by a Fund during January of the following calendar year. Such distributions will be taxable to shareholders in the calendar year in which the distributions are declared, rather than the calendar year in which the distributions are received.

Subject to certain reasonable cause and *de minimis* exceptions, if a Fund fails to qualify as a regulated investment company or fails to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement in any taxable year, such Fund would be taxed as an ordinary corporation on its taxable income (even if such income were distributed to its shareholders) and all distributions out of earnings and profits would be taxed to shareholders as ordinary income.

Distributions. Dividends paid out of a Fund's investment company taxable income are generally taxable to a shareholder as ordinary income to the extent of such Fund's earnings and profits, whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional shares. However, certain ordinary income distributions received from a Fund may be taxed at capital gains tax rates. In particular, ordinary income dividends received by an individual shareholder from a regulated investment company such as a Fund are generally taxed at the same rates that apply to net capital gain, provided that certain holding period requirements are satisfied and provided the dividends are attributable to qualifying dividends received by such Fund itself.

The Funds will provide notice to its shareholders of the amount of any distributions that may be taken into account as a dividend, which is eligible for the capital gains tax rates. The Funds cannot make any guarantees as to the amount of any distribution which will be regarded as a qualifying dividend.

Income from a Fund may also be subject to a 3.8% "Medicare tax." This tax generally applies to net investment income if the taxpayer's adjusted gross income exceeds certain threshold amounts, which are \$250,000 in the case of married couples filing joint returns and \$200,000 in the case of single individuals.

A corporation that owns Fund Shares generally will not be entitled to the dividends received deduction with respect to many dividends received from such Fund because the dividends received deduction is generally not available for distributions from regulated investment companies. However, certain ordinary income dividends on shares that are attributable to qualifying dividends received by a Fund from certain domestic corporations may be reported by such Fund as being eligible for the dividends received deduction.

Distributions of net capital gain (the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), if any, properly reported as capital gain dividends are taxable to a shareholder as long-term capital gains, regardless of how long the shareholder has held Fund Shares. An election may be available to you to defer recognition of the gain attributable to a capital gain dividend if you make certain qualifying investments within a limited time. You should talk to your tax advisor about the availability of this deferral election and its requirements. Shareholders receiving distributions in the form of additional Fund Shares, rather than cash, generally will have a tax basis in each such Fund Share equal to the value of a Fund Share on the reinvestment date. A distribution of an amount in excess of a Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated by a shareholder as a return of capital which is applied against and reduces the shareholder's basis in his or her Fund Shares. To the extent that the amount of any such distribution exceeds the shareholder's basis in his or her Fund Shares, the excess will be treated by the shareholder as gain from a sale or exchange of such Fund Shares.

Shareholders will be notified annually as to the U.S. federal income tax status of distributions, and shareholders receiving distributions in the form of additional Fund Shares will receive a report as to the value of those Fund Shares.

Sale or Exchange of Fund Shares. Upon the sale or other disposition of Fund Shares, which a shareholder holds as a capital asset, such a shareholder may realize a capital gain or loss, which will be long-term or short-term, depending upon the shareholder's holding period for Fund Shares. Generally, a shareholder's gain or loss will be a long-term gain or loss if Fund Shares have been held for more than one year. An election may be available to you to defer recognition of capital gain if you make certain qualifying investments within a limited time. You should talk to your tax advisor about the availability of this deferral election and its requirements.

Any loss realized on a sale or exchange will be disallowed to the extent that shares disposed of are replaced (including through reinvestment of dividends) within a period of 61 days beginning 30 days before and ending 30 days after disposition of shares or to the extent that the shareholder, during such period, acquires or enters into an option or contract to acquire, substantially identical stock or securities. In such a case, the basis of a Fund Shares acquired will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss. Any loss realized by a shareholder on a disposition of Fund Shares held by the shareholder for six months or less will be treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any distributions of long-term capital gain received by the shareholder with respect to such Fund Shares.

Taxes on Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units. If a shareholder exchanges securities for Creation Units the shareholder will generally recognize a gain or a loss. The gain or loss will be equal to the

difference between the market value of the Creation Units at the time and the shareholder's aggregate basis in the securities surrendered and the Cash Component paid. If a shareholder exchanges Creation Units for securities, then the shareholder will generally recognize a gain or loss equal to the difference between the shareholder's basis in the Creation Units and the aggregate market value of the securities received and the Cash Redemption Amount. The Internal Revenue Service, however, may assert that a loss realized upon an exchange of securities for Creation Units or Creation Units for securities cannot be deducted currently under the rules governing "wash sales," or on the basis that there has been no significant change in economic position.

Nature of Fund Investments. Certain of the Funds' investment practices are subject to special and complex federal income tax provisions that may, among other things, (i) disallow, suspend or otherwise limit the allowance of certain losses or deductions; (ii) convert lower taxed long-term capital gain into higher taxed short-term capital gain or ordinary income; (iii) convert an ordinary loss or a deduction into a capital loss (the deductibility of which is more limited); (iv) cause a Fund to recognize income or gain without a corresponding receipt of cash; (v) adversely affect the time as to when a purchase or sale of stock or securities is deemed to occur; and (vi) adversely alter the characterization of certain complex financial transactions.

Investments in Certain Non-U.S. Corporations. If a Fund holds an equity interest in any "passive foreign investment companies" ("PFICs"), which are generally certain non-U.S. corporations that receive at least 75% of their annual gross income from passive sources (such as interest, dividends, certain rents and royalties or capital gains) or that hold at least 50% of their assets in investments producing such passive income, such Fund could be subject to U.S. federal income tax and additional interest charges on gains and certain distributions with respect to those equity interests, even if all the income or gain is timely distributed to its shareholders. A Fund will not be able to pass through to its shareholders any credit or deduction for such taxes. A Fund may be able to make an election that could ameliorate these adverse tax consequences. In this case, a Fund would recognize as ordinary income any increase in the value of such PFIC shares, and as ordinary loss any decrease in such value to the extent it did not exceed prior increases included in income. Under this election, a Fund might be required to recognize in a year income in excess of its distributions from PFICs and its proceeds from dispositions of PFIC stock during that year, and such income would nevertheless be subject to the distribution requirement and would be taken into account for purposes of the 4% excise tax (described above). Dividends paid by PFICs are not treated as qualified dividend income.

Backup Withholding. A Fund may be required to withhold U.S. federal income tax from all taxable distributions and sale proceeds payable to shareholders who fail to provide such Fund with their correct taxpayer identification number or fail to make required certifications, or who have been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that they are subject to backup withholding. Corporate shareholders and certain other shareholders specified in the Code generally are exempt from such backup withholding. This withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld may be credited against the shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability.

Non-U.S. Shareholders. U.S. taxation of a shareholder who, as to the United States, is a nonresident alien individual, a non-U.S. trust or estate, a non-U.S. corporation or non-U.S. partnership ("non-U.S. shareholder") depends on whether the income of a Fund is "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by the shareholder.

In addition to the rules described in this section concerning the potential imposition of withholding on distributions to non-U.S. persons, distributions to non-U.S. persons that are "financial institutions" may be subject to a withholding tax of 30% unless an agreement is in place between the financial institution and the U.S. Treasury to collect and disclose information about accounts, equity investments, or debt interests in the financial institution held by one or more U.S. persons or the institution is resident in a jurisdiction that has entered into such an agreement with the U.S. Treasury. For these purposes, a "financial institution" means any entity that (i) accepts deposits in the ordinary course of a banking or similar business; (ii) holds financial assets for the account of others as a substantial portion of its business; or (iii) is engaged (or holds itself out as being engaged) primarily in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities, partnership interests, commodities or any interest (including a futures contract or option) in such securities, partnership interests or commodities. This withholding tax is also currently scheduled to apply to the gross proceeds from the disposition of securities that produce U.S. source interest or dividends. However, proposed regulations may eliminate the requirement to withhold on payments of gross proceeds from dispositions.

Distributions to non-financial non-U.S. entities (other than publicly traded non-U.S. entities, entities owned by residents of U.S. possessions, non-U.S. governments, international organizations, or non-U.S. central banks), will also be subject to a withholding tax of 30% if the entity does not certify that the entity does not have any substantial U.S. owners or provide the name, address and TIN of each substantial U.S. owner. This withholding tax is also currently scheduled to apply to the gross proceeds from the disposition of securities that produce U.S. source interest or dividends. However, proposed regulations may eliminate the requirement to withhold on payments of gross proceeds from dispositions.

Income Not Effectively Connected. If the income from a Fund is not "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by the non-U.S. shareholder, distributions of investment company taxable income will generally be subject to a U.S. tax of 30% (or lower treaty rate), which tax is generally withheld from such distributions.

Distributions of capital gain dividends and any amounts retained by a Fund which are properly reported by such Fund as undistributed capital gains will not be subject to U.S. tax at the rate of 30% (or lower treaty rate) unless the non-U.S. shareholder is a nonresident alien individual and is physically present in the United States for more than 182 days during the taxable year and meets certain other requirements. However, this 30% tax on capital gains of nonresident alien individuals who are physically present in the United States for more than the 182 day period only applies in exceptional cases because any individual present in the United States for more than 182 days during the taxable year is generally treated as a resident for U.S. income tax purposes; in that case, he or she would be subject to U.S. income tax on his or her worldwide income at the graduated rates applicable to U.S. citizens, rather than the 30% U.S. tax. In the case of a non-U.S. shareholder who is a nonresident alien individual, a Fund may be required to withhold U.S. income tax from distributions of net capital gain unless the non-U.S. shareholder certifies his or her non-U.S. status under penalties of perjury or otherwise establishes an exemption. If a non-U.S. shareholder is a nonresident alien individual, any gain such shareholder realizes upon the sale or exchange of such shareholder's Fund Shares in the United States will ordinarily be exempt from U.S. tax unless the gain is U.S. source income and such shareholder is physically present in the United States for more than 182 days during the taxable year and meets certain other requirements.

Distributions from a Fund that are properly reported by such Fund as an interest-related dividend attributable to certain interest income received by such Fund or as a short-term capital gain dividend

attributable to certain net short-term capital gain income received by such Fund may not be subject to U.S. federal income taxes, including withholding taxes when received by certain non-U.S. shareholders, provided that such Fund makes certain elections and certain other conditions are met. For tax years after December 31, 2022, amounts paid to or recognized by a non-U.S. affiliate that are excluded from tax under the portfolio interest, capital gain dividends, short-term capital gains or tax-exempt interest dividend exceptions or applicable treaties, may be taken into consideration in determining whether a corporation is an "applicable corporation" subject to a 15% minimum tax on adjusted financial statement income.

In addition, capital gain distributions attributable to gains from U.S. real property interests (including certain U.S. real property holding corporations) will generally be subject to United States withholding tax and will give rise to an obligation on the part of the non-U.S. shareholder to file a United States tax return.

Income Effectively Connected. If the income from a Fund is "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by a non-U.S. shareholder, then distributions of investment company taxable income and capital gain dividends, any amounts retained by such Fund which are properly reported by such Fund as undistributed capital gains and any gains realized upon the sale or exchange of such Fund's Shares will be subject to U.S. income tax at the graduated rates applicable to U.S. citizens, residents and domestic corporations. Non-U.S. corporate shareholders may also be subject to the branch profits tax imposed by the Code. The tax consequences to a non-U.S. shareholder entitled to claim the benefits of an applicable tax treaty may differ from those described herein. Non-U.S. shareholders are advised to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the particular tax consequences to them of an investment in a Fund.

Capital Loss Carryforward. Net capital gains of a Fund that are available for distribution to shareholders will be computed by taking into account any applicable capital loss carryforward.

Other Taxation. Fund shareholders may be subject to state, local and foreign taxes on their Fund distributions. Shareholders are advised to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the particular tax consequences to them of an investment in a Fund.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The NAV per Fund Share is computed by dividing the value of the net assets of a Fund (i.e., the value of its total assets less total liabilities) by the total number of Fund Shares outstanding, rounded to the nearest cent. Expenses and fees, including the management fees, are accrued daily and taken into account for purposes of determining NAV. The NAV of a Fund is calculated by USBGFS and determined at the scheduled close of the regular trading session on the NYSE (ordinarily 4:00 p.m., Eastern time) on each day that the NYSE is open, provided that fixed-income assets may be valued as of the announced closing time for trading in fixed-income instruments on any day that the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association ("SIFMA") announces an early closing time.

In calculating a Fund's NAV per Fund Share, such Fund's investments are generally valued using market prices to the extent such market quotations are readily available. If market quotations are not readily available, including if market quotations are deemed to be unreliable by the Adviser, a Fund will fair value such investments and use the fair value to calculate such Fund's NAV. Pursuant to Rule 2a-5 under the 1940 Act, the Board has designated the Adviser to perform the fair value determinations for a Fund's portfolio holdings subject to the Board's oversight. The Adviser's fair value determinations will be carried

out in compliance with Rule 2a-5 and based on fair value methodologies established and applied by the Adviser and periodically tested to ensure such methodologies are appropriate and accurate with respect to a Fund's portfolio holdings. The Adviser's fair value methodologies may involve obtaining inputs and prices from third-party pricing services.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The following information supplements and should be read in conjunction with the section in the Prospectus entitled "Dividends, Distributions and Taxes."

General Policies. Dividends from net investment income of a Fund, if any, are declared and paid at least annually. Distributions of net realized securities gains, if any, generally are declared and paid once a year, but the Trust may make distributions on a more frequent basis. The Trust reserves the right to declare special distributions if, in its reasonable discretion, such action is necessary or advisable to preserve the status of a Fund as a regulated investment company or to avoid imposition of income or excise taxes on undistributed income.

Dividends and other distributions of Fund Shares are distributed, as described below, on a pro rata basis to Beneficial Owners of such Fund Shares. Dividend payments are made through DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners then of record with proceeds received from a Fund.

Dividend Reinvestment Service. No reinvestment service is provided by the Trust. Broker-dealers may make available the DTC book-entry Dividend Reinvestment Service for use by Beneficial Owners of a Fund for reinvestment of their dividend distributions. Beneficial Owners should contact their brokers in order to determine the availability and costs of the service and the details of participation therein. Brokers may require Beneficial Owners to adhere to specific procedures and timetables. If this service is available and used, dividend distributions of both income and realized gains will be automatically reinvested in additional whole shares of a Fund purchased in the secondary market.

MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

Legal Counsel. Chapman and Cutler LLP, 320 South Canal Street, Chicago, Illinois 60606, is legal counsel to the Trust.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. Cohen & Company, Ltd., located at 1350 Euclid Avenue, Suite 800, Cleveland, Ohio 44115, serves as the Funds' independent registered public accounting firm. Cohen & Company, Ltd. audits the Funds' financial statements and performs other related audit services.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

To obtain a Fund's most current performance information, please call (855) 561-5728 or visit a Fund's website at https://www.roundhillinvestments.com/etf. From time to time, a Fund's performance information, such as yield or total return, may be quoted in advertisements or in communications to present or prospective shareholders. Performance quotations represent a Fund's past performance and should not

be considered as representative of future results. A Fund will calculate its performance in accordance with the requirements of the rules and regulations under the 1940 Act, as they may be revised from time to time.